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Name of Issuer: 
 
Stojo Products Inc., f/k/a ³Urban Tumbler LLC´ 
 
Legal status of Issuer: 
 
 Form: 
 
 Corporation 
 
 Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Organization: 
 
 Delaware 
 
 Date of Organization: 
 
 March 22, 2018 
 
Physical Address of Issuer: 
 
41 Flatbush Avenue, FL 1, PMB 588, Brooklyn, NY 11217 
 
Website of Issuer: 
 
https://stojo.co/ 
 
Name of Intermediary through which the Offering will be Conducted: 
 
OpenDeal Portal LLC dba Republic 
 
CIK Number of Intermediary: 
 
0001751525  
 
SEC File Number of Intermediary: 
 
007-00167 
 
CRD Number of Intermediary: 
 
283874 
 



 
 

  
 

Name of qualified third party ³EscroZ Agent´ Zhich the Offering Zill Xtili]e: 
 
Prime Trust, LLC  
 
Amount of compensation to be paid to the intermediary, whether as a dollar amount or a percentage of the offering 
amount, or a good faith estimate if the exact amount is not available at the time of the filing, for conducting the 
offering, including the amount of referral and any other fees associated with the offering: 
 
At the conclusion of the offering, the issuer shall pay a fee of six percent (6%) of the amount raised in the offering to 
the intermediary. 
 
Any other direct or indirect interest in the issuer held by the intermediary, or any arrangement for the intermediary 
to acquire such an interest: 
 
The Intermediary will also receive compensation in the form of securities equal to two percent (2%) of the total number 
of the securities sold in the offering. 
 
Type of Security Offered: 
 
Crowd SAFE (Simple Agreement for Future Equity) 
 
Target Number of Securities to be Offered: 
 
25,000 
 
Price (or Method for Determining Price): 
 
$1.00 
 
Target Offering Amount: 
 
$25,000 
 
Oversubscriptions Accepted: 
☑ Yes 
☐ No 
 
Oversubscriptions will be Allocated: 
☐ Pro-rata basis 
☐ First-come, first-served basis 
☑ Other: At the Compan\¶s discretion 
 
Maximum offering amount (if different from Target Offering Amount): 
 
$1,070,000 
 
Deadline to reach the Target Offering Amount: 
 
February 5, 2021 
 
If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering amount at the deadline 
to reach the target offering amount, no Securities will be sold in the offering, investment commitments will be 
cancelled and committed funds will be returned. 
 
Current Number of Employees: 
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Most recent fiscal year-end 

(2019)  
Prior fiscal year-end 

(2018)  

Total Assets $2,767,544 $912,457 

Cash & Cash Equivalents $646,049 $475,013 

Accounts Receivable $929,862 $172,390 

Short-term Debt $2,472,431 $886,366 

Long-term Debt $406,037 $381,086 

Revenues/Sales $6,575,838 $2,798,738 

Cost of Goods Sold $4,711,030* $2,068,670* 

Taxes Paid $0 $0 

Net Income $(430,928) $(119,307) 

   *  This figure represents cost of revenues. 
 
The jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities: 
 
Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, District Of Columbia, Florida, 
Georgia, Guam, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, 
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New 
Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Puerto Rico, 
Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virgin Islands, U.S., Virginia, 
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, American Samoa, and Northern Mariana Islands 
 
 
 
  



 
 

  
 

October 5, 2020 
 

Stojo Products Inc. 
f/k/a ³UUbaQ TXPbOeU LLC´ 

 

 
Up to $1,070,000 of Crowd SAFE (Simple Agreement for Future Equity) 

 
Stojo Products Inc., f/k/a ³Urban Tumbler LLC´ (³Stojo,´ the ³Company,´ ³we,´ ³us´, or ³our´), is offering a 
minimum amount of $25,000 (the ³Target Offering Amount´) and up to a maximum amount of $1,070,000 (the 
³Maximum Offering Amount´) of Crowd SAFE (Simple Agreement for Future Equity) (the ³Securities´) as 
described in this Form C (this ³OffeUing´). We must raise an amount equal to or greater than the Target Offering 
Amount by February 5, 2021 (the ³Offering Deadline´). Unless we raise at least the Target Offering Amount by the 
Offering Deadline, no Securities will be sold in this Offering, all investment commitments will be cancelled, and all 
committed funds will be returned.  

Potential purchasers of the Securities are referred to herein as ³Investors´ or ³you´. The rights and obligations of 
Investors with respect to the Securities are set forth below in the section titled ³The Offering and the Securities²The 
Securities´. In order to purchase the Securities, you must complete the purchase process through our intermediary, 
OpenDeal Portal LLC dba Republic (the ³Intermediary´). All committed funds will be held in escrow with Prime 
Trust, LLC (the ³Escrow Agent´) until the Target Offering Amount has been met or exceeded and one or more 
closings occur. Investors may cancel an investment commitment until up to 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline, 
or such earlier time as such earlier time the Company designates pursuant to Regulation CF, using the cancellation 
mechanism provided by the Intermediary.  
 
Investment commitments may be accepted or rejected by us, in our sole and absolute discretion. We have the right to 
cancel or rescind our offer to sell the Securities at any time and for any reason. The Intermediary has the ability to 
reject any investment commitment and may cancel or rescind our offer to sell the Securities at any time for any reason. 
 

 Price to Investors Service Fees and 
Commissions (1)(2) Net Proceeds 

Minimum Individual 
Purchase Amount (3) $150 $9.00 $141 

Target Offering Amount $25,000 $1,500 $23,500 

Maximum Offering 
Amount $1,070,000 $64,200 $1,005,800 

 
(1)  This excludes fees to Compan\¶s advisors, such as attorne\s and accountants.  
(2)  In addition to the six percent (6%) fee shown here, the Intermediary will also receive a securities 

commission equal to two percent (2%) of the Securities sold in this Offering.  
(3) The Company reserves the right to amend the Minimum Individual Purchase Amount, in its sole 

discretion. In particular, the Company may elect to participate in one of the Intermediary's special 
investment programs and may offer alternative Minimum Individual Purchase Amounts to Investors 
participating in such programs without notice. 

 
A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this Offering unless you can 
afford to lose your entire investment. 



 
 

  
 

 
In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Company and the terms 
of the Offering, including the merits and risks involved. These Securities have not been recommended or 
approved by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities 
have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.  
 
The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any Securities offered or the 
terms of the Offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any Offering document or 
literature.  
 
These Securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission has not made an independent determination that these Securities are exempt from registration. 
 
THESE SECURITIES INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK THAT MAY NOT BE APPROPRIATE FOR ALL 
INVESTORS. THERE ARE ALSO SIGNIFICANT UNCERTAINTIES ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT 
IN OUR COMPANY AND THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY ARE NOT PUBLICLY 
TRADED. THERE IS NO PUBLIC MARKET FOR THE SECURITIES AND ONE MAY NEVER DEVELOP. AN 
INVESTMENT IN OUR COMPANY IS HIGHLY SPECULATIVE. THE SECURITIES SHOULD NOT BE 
PURCHASED BY ANYONE WHO CANNOT BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISK OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN 
INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME AND WHO CANNOT AFFORD THE LOSS OF THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. 
SEE THE SECTION OF THIS FORM C TITLED ³RISK FACTORS´ BEGINNING ON PAGE 2. 

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY WILL HAVE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS. NO SECURITIES MAY BE 
PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF BY ANY INVESTOR EXCEPT 
PURSUANT TO RULE 501 OF REGULATION CF. YOU SHOULD BE AWARE THAT YOU WILL BE 
REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF 
TIME. 

YOU ARE NOT TO CONSTRUE THE CONTENTS OF THIS FORM C AS LEGAL, ACCOUNTING OR TAX 
ADVICE OR AS INFORMATION NECESSARILY APPLICABLE TO YOUR PARTICULAR FINANCIAL 
SITUATION. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN FINANCIAL ADVISER, COUNSEL AND 
ACCOUNTANT AS TO LEGAL, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THEIR INVESTMENT. 

THIS OFFERING IS ONLY EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES 
AND ITS TERRITORIES. NO OFFER IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION NOT LISTED ABOVE. 
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE PERMISSIBILITY OF 
THEIR PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING, INCLUDING OBSERVING ANY OTHER REQUIRED LEGAL 
FORMALITIES AND SEEKING CONSENT FROM THEIR LOCAL REGULATOR, IF NECESSARY. THE 
INTERMEDIARY FACILITATING THIS OFFERING IS LICENSED AND REGISTERED SOLELY IN THE 
UNITED STATES AND HAS NOT SECURED, AND HAS NOT SOUGHT TO SECURE, A LICENSE OR 
WAIVER OF THE NEED FOR SUCH LICENSE IN ANY OTHER JURISDCITION. THE COMPANY, THE 
ESCROW AGENT AND THE INTERMEDIARY, EACH RESERVE THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY 
INVESTMENT COMMITMENT MADE BY ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR, WHETHER FOREIGN OR 
DOMESTIC. 

SPECIAL NOTICE TO FOREIGN INVESTORS 
 
IF YOU LIVE OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, IT IS YOUR RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY OBSERVE THE 
LAWS OF ANY RELEVANT TERRITORY OR JURISDICTION OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN 
CONNECTION WITH ANY PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES, INCLUDING OBTAINING REQUIRED 
GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER CONSENTS OR OBSERVING ANY OTHER REQUIRED LEGAL OR OTHER 
FORMALITIES. WE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO DENY THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES BY ANY 
FOREIGN INVESTOR. 
 

NOTICE REGARDING THE ESCROW AGENT 
 

PRIME TRUST LLC, THE ESCROW AGENT SERVICING THE OFFERING, HAS NOT INVESTIGATED THE 
DESIRABILITY OR ADVISABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THIS OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES 



 
 

  
 

OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, 
ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGEMENT ON THE MERITS OF THE OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED 
HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT¶S CONNECTION TO THE OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR THE LIMITED 
PURPOSES OF ACTING AS A SERVICE PROVIDER. 

The Company has certified that all of the following statements are TRUE for the Company in connection with this 
Offering: 
 

(1) Is organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States or the District of 
Columbia; 

(2) Is not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (the ³Exchange Act´) (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)); 

(3) Is not an investment company, as defined in Section 3 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the 
³Investment Company Act´)(15 U.S.C. 80a-3), or excluded from the definition of investment company by 
Section 3(b) or Section 3(c) of the Investment Company Act (15 U.S.C. 80a-3(b) or 80a-3(c)); 

(4) Is not ineligible to offer or sell securities in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the 
³1933 Act´) (15 U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) as a result of a disqualification as specified in � 227.503(a); 

(5) Has filed with the SEC and provided to investors, to the extent required, any ongoing annual reports required 
by law during the two years immediately preceding the filing of this Form C; and 

(6) Has a specific business plan, which is not to engage in a merger or acquisition with an unidentified company 
or companies. 

 
Bad Actor Disclosure 
 
The Company is not subject to any bad actor disqualifications under any relevant U.S. securities laws. 
 
Ongoing Reporting 
 
Following the first sale of the Securities, the Company will file a report electronically with the Securities & Exchange 
Commission annually and post the report on its website, no later than 120 days after the end of the Compan\¶s fiscal 
year. 
 
Once posted, the annual report ma\ be found on the Compan\¶s website at https://stojo.co/. 
 
The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until: 

(1) the Company is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act; 

(2) the Company has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation CF and has total assets that do not 
exceed $10,000,000; 

(3) the Company has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation CF and has fewer than 300 holders 
of record; 

(4) the Company or another party repurchases all of the Securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the 
1933 Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable 
securities; or 

(5) the Company liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with applicable state law. 
 
Neither the Company nor any of its predecessors (if any) previously failed to comply with the congoing reporting 
requirement of Regulation CF. 
 
Updates 
 
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: https://www.republic.co/stojo. 
 
 



 
 

  
 

 
 

The date of this Form C is October 5, 2020.
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ABOUT THIS FORM C 
 
You should rely only on the information contained in this Form C. We have not authorized anyone to provide any 
information or make any representations other than those contained in this Form C, and no source other than the 
Intermediary has been authorized to host this Form C and the Offering. If anyone provides you with different or 
inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not offering to sell, nor seeking offers to buy, the Securities 
in any jurisdiction where such offers and sales are not permitted. The information contained in this Form C and any 
documents incorporated by reference herein is accurate only as of the date of those respective documents, regardless 
of the time of delivery of this Form C or the time of issuance or sale of any Securities.  
 
Statements contained herein as to the content of any agreements or other documents are summaries and, therefore, are 
necessarily selective and incomplete and are qualified in their entirety by the actual agreements or other documents. 
Prior to the consummation of the purchase and sale of the Securities, the Company will afford prospective Investors 
an opportunity to ask questions of, and receive answers from, the Company and its management concerning the terms 
and conditions of this Offering and the Company.  
 
In making an investment decision, you must rely on your own examination of the Company and the terms of the 
Offering, including the merits and risks involved. The statements of the Company contained herein are based on 
information believed to be reliable; however, no warranty can be made as to the accuracy of such information or that 
circumstances have not changed since the date of this Form C. For example, our business, financial condition, results 
of operations, and prospects may have changed since the date of this Form C. The Company does not expect to update 
or otherwise revise this Form C or any other materials supplied herewith.   
 
This Form C is submitted in connection with the Offering described herein and may not be reproduced or used for any 
other purpose. 
 

CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 

This Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein contain forward-looking statements and are subject 
to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact or relating to present facts or current 
conditions included in this Form C are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements give our current 
reasonable expectations and projections regarding our financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, 
future performance and business. You can identify forward-looking statements by the fact that they do not relate 
strictly to historical or current facts. These statements ma\ include words such as ³anticipate,´ ³estimate,´ ³expect,´ 
³project,´ ³plan,´ ³intend,´ ³believe,´ ³ma\,´ ³should,´ ³can have,´ ³likel\´ and other words and terms of similar 
meaning in connection with any discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial performance or 
other events. 

 
The forward-looking statements contained in this Form C and any documents incorporated by reference herein are 
based on reasonable assumptions we have made in light of our industry experience, perceptions of historical trends, 
current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe are appropriate under the 
circumstances. As you read and consider this Form C, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees 
of performance or results. Although we believe that these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable 
assumptions, you should be aware that many factors could affect our actual operating and financial performance and 
cause our performance to differ materially from the performance anticipated in the forward-looking statements. Should 
one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of these assumptions prove incorrect or change, 
our actual operating and financial performance may vary in material respects from the performance projected in these 
forward-looking statements.  

 
Investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking 
statements made in this Form C or any documents incorporated by reference herein is accurate only as of the date of 
those respective documents. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-
looking statements for any reason after the date of this Form C or to conform these statements to actual results or to 
changes in our expectations. 
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SUMMARY 

 
The following summary highlights information contained elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this Form C. This 
summary may not contain all of the information that may be important to you. You should read this entire Form C 
caUefXOO\, iQcOXdiQg Whe PaWWeUV diVcXVVed XQdeU Whe VecWiRQ WiWOed ³RiVN FacWRUV.´ 
 
The Company 
 
Stojo Products Inc. is a sustainable products lifestyle brand that focuses on portable, collapsible, reusable food and 
beverage containers, incorporated in Delaware as a corporation on March 22, 2018. On April 17, 2018, the Company 
acquired all of the assets of Urban Tumbler LLC, a New York limited liability company, and a predecessor to the 
Company. 
 
The Company is located at 41 Flatbush Avenue, FL 1, PMB 588, Brooklyn, NY 11217. 
 
The Compan\¶s website is https://stojo.co/. 
 
The Company is headquartered and conducts business in the State of New York, and sells products through the Internet 
throughout the United States and internationally.  
 
A description of our products, services and business plan can be found on the Compan\¶s profile page on the 
Intermediar\¶s website under https://republic.co/stojo and is attached as Exhibit B to this Form C.  
 
The Offering  
 

Minimum Amount of the Securities Offered 25,000 

Total Amount of the Securities Outstanding after 
Offering (if Target Offering Amount met) 25,000* 

Maximum Amount of the Securities Offered 1,070,000 

Total Amount of the Securities Outstanding after 
Offering (if Maximum Offering Amount met) 1,070,000* 

Price Per Security $1.00 

Minimum Individual Purchase Amount $150 + 

Offering Deadline February 5, 2021 

Use of Proceeds See the description of the use of proceeds on page 13 
hereof. 

Voting Rights See the description of the voting rights on page 29.  

*The total number of the Securities outstanding after the Offering is subject to increase in an amount equal 
to the Intermediar\¶s fee of two percent (2%) of the Securities issued in this Offering. 
+ The Company reserves the right to amend the Minimum Individual Purchase Amount, in its sole discretion. 
In particular, the Company may elect to participate in one of the Intermediary's special investment programs 
and may offer alternative Minimum Individual Purchase Amounts to Investors participating in such programs 
without notice.  
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RISK FACTORS 
 
Investing in the Securities involves a high degree of risk and may result in the loss of your entire investment. Before 
making an investment decision with respect to the Securities, we urge you to carefully consider the risks described in 
this section and other factors set forth in this Form C. In addition to the risks specified below, the Company is subject 
to same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These include risks 
relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and technological developments (such as hacking and 
the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently riskier than more developed 
companies. Prospective Investors should consult with their legal, tax and financial advisors prior to making an 
investment in the Securities. The Securities should only be purchased by persons who can afford to lose all of their 
investment. 
 
RLVNV ReOaWed WR WKe CRPSaQ\¶V BXVLQeVV aQd IQdXVWU\  
 
We have a limited operating history upon which you can evaluate our performance, and accordingly, our prospects 
must be considered in light of the risks that any new company encounters. 
 
The Company is still in an early phase and we are just beginning to implement our business plan. There can be no 
assurance that we will ever operate profitably. The likelihood of our success should be considered in light of the 
problems, expenses, difficulties, complications and delays usually encountered by early stage companies. The 
Company may not be successful in attaining the objectives necessary for it to overcome these risks and uncertainties. 
 
Global crises such as COVID-19 can have a significant effect on our business operations and revenue projections. 
 
With shelter-in-place orders and non-essential business closings potentially happening throughout 2020 and into the 
future due to COVID-19, the Compan\¶s revenue has been adversel\ affected. Early in 2020, the Company 
experienced delays in manufacturing and shipments leaving its factories in China, which had a negative impact on 
sales. While this situation posed a difficulty for the business we have since overcome many of these problems and are 
growing the business again, although at a slower rate than previously projected. However, our business and prospects 
could continue to be materially adversely affected by the COVID-19 pandemic or recurrences of that or any other 
such disease in the future. Material adverse effects from COVID-19 and similar occurrences could result in numerous 
known and currently unknown ways including from quarantines and lockdowns which impair our marketing and sales 
efforts to users of our products. 
 
In addition, continued effects of COVID-19 or a significant outbreak of other contagious diseases in the human 
population could result in a widespread health crisis that could adversely affect the economies and financial markets 
of many countries, resulting in an economic downturn that could reduce the demand for our services and impair our 
business prospects including as a result of being unable to raise additional capital on acceptable terms to us, if at all. 
 
 
The amount of capital the Company is attempting to raise in this Offering may not be enough to sustain the 
Compan\¶s cXrrent bXsiness plan. 
 
In order to achieve the Compan\¶s near and long-term goals, the Company may need to procure funds in addition to 
the amount raised in the Offering. There is no guarantee the Company will be able to raise such funds on acceptable 
terms or at all. If we are not able to raise sufficient capital in the future, we may not be able to execute our business 
plan, our continued operations will be in jeopardy and we may be forced to cease operations and sell or otherwise 
transfer all or substantially all of our remaining assets, which could cause an Investor to lose all or a portion of their 
investment. 
 
We may face potential difficulties in obtaining capital. 
 
We may have difficulty raising needed capital in the future as a result of, among other factors, our lack of revenues 
from sales, as well as the inherent business risks associated with our Company and present and future market 
conditions. We will require additional funds to execute our business strategy and conduct our operations. If adequate 
funds are unavailable, we may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our research, 
development or commercialization programs, product launches or marketing efforts, any of which may materially 
harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
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A majority of the Company is owned by a small group of owners.   
 
The Company is currently controlled by a three person board of directors appointed b\ the holders of the Compan\¶s 
capital stock who together hold approximately 68.53% of the outstanding voting equity securities of the Company.  
Subject to any fiduciary duties owed to the other owners or investors under Delaware law, these majority owners may 
be able to exercise significant influence through their board appointments.  The board of directors is responsible for 
approving significant Company transactions, and will have significant control over the Compan\¶s budget, 
management and policies. These owners may have interests that are different from yours. For example, these owners 
may support proposals and actions with which you may disagree. The concentration of ownership and board control 
could delay or prevent a change in control of the Company or otherwise discourage a potential acquirer from 
attempting to obtain control of the Company, which in turn could reduce the price potential investors are willing to 
pay for the Company. In addition, these owners could use their board influence to maintain the Compan\¶s existing 
management, delay or prevent changes in control of the Company, or support or reject other management and board 
proposals that are subject to stockholder approval.  
 
The Company has indicated that it has engaged in certain transactions with related persons.  
 
JXUUieQ SZaUWV, Whe CRmSaQ\¶V CEO aQd diUecWRU, is the principal of an entity which (i) has made an investment in the 
Company pursuant to the terms of a convertible note, and (ii) holds approximately 41% of our outstanding shares of 
Common Stock. The Company has also entered into a distribution agreement with an affiliate of Vivienne Cudahy, 
who is one of our directors. Such transactions are not the result of aUm¶V leQgWh QegRWiaWiRQs, and it is possible that the 
Company could have conducted similar transactions with a third party on more favorable terms. Please see the section 
entitled ³Transactions with Related Persons and Conflicts of Interest´ for further details. 
 
We may implement new lines of business or offer new products and services within existing lines of business. 
 
As an early-stage company, we may implement new lines of business at any time. There are substantial risks and 
uncertainties associated with these efforts, particularly in instances where the markets are not fully developed. In 
developing and marketing new lines of business and/or new products and services, we may invest significant time and 
resources. Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new lines of business and/or new products or 
services may not be achieved, and price and profitability targets may not prove feasible. We may not be successful in 
introducing new products and services in response to industry trends or developments in technology, or those new 
products may not achieve market acceptance. As a result, we could lose business, be forced to price products and 
services on less advantageous terms to retain or attract clients or be subject to cost increases. As a result, our business, 
financial condition or results of operations may be adversely affected. 
 
We rely on other companies to provide components and services for our products. 
 
We depend on suppliers and contractors to meet our contractual obligations to our customers and conduct our 
operations. Our ability to meet our obligations to our customers may be adversely affected if suppliers or contractors 
do not provide the agreed-upon supplies or perform the agreed-upon services in compliance with customer 
requirements and in a timely and cost-effective manner. Likewise, the quality of our products may be adversely 
impacted if companies to whom we delegate manufacture of major components or subsystems for our products, or 
from whom we acquire such items, do not provide components which meet required specifications and perform to our 
and our customers¶ expectations. Our suppliers ma\ unable to quickl\ recover from natural disasters and other events 
beyond their control and may be subject to additional risks such as financial problems that limit their ability to conduct 
their operations. The risk of these adverse effects may be greater in circumstances where we rely on only one or two 
contractors or suppliers for a particular component. Our products may utilize custom components available from only 
one source. Continued availability of those components at acceptable prices, or at all, may be affected for any number 
of reasons, including if those suppliers decide to concentrate on the production of common components instead of 
components customized to meet our requirements. The supply of components for a new or existing product could be 
delayed or constrained, or a key manufacturing vendor could delay shipments of completed products to us adversely 
affecting our business and results of operations. 
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We rely on various intellectual property rights, including trademarks, in order to operate our business. 
 
The Compan\ relies on certain intellectual propert\ rights to operate its business. The Compan\¶s intellectual propert\ 
rights may not be sufficiently broad or otherwise may not provide us a significant competitive advantage. In addition, 
the steps that we have taken to maintain and protect our intellectual property may not prevent it from being challenged, 
invalidated, circumvented or designed-around, particularly in countries where intellectual property rights are not 
highly developed or protected. In some circumstances, enforcement may not be available to us because an infringer 
has a dominant intellectual property position or for other business reasons, or countries may require compulsory 
licensing of our intellectual property. Our failure to obtain or maintain intellectual property rights that convey 
competitive advantage, adequately protect our intellectual property or detect or prevent circumvention or unauthorized 
use of such property, could adversely impact our competitive position and results of operations. We also rely on 
nondisclosure and noncompetition agreements with employees, consultants and other parties to protect, in part, trade 
secrets and other proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that these agreements will adequately protect our trade 
secrets and other proprietary rights and will not be breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any breach, that 
others will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information or that third parties will not 
otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or other proprietary rights. As we expand our business, protecting our 
intellectual property will become increasingly important. The protective steps we have taken may be inadequate to 
deter our competitors from using our proprietary information. In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may 
be required to initiate litigation against third parties, such as infringement lawsuits. Also, these third parties may assert 
claims against us with or without provocation. These lawsuits could be expensive, take significant time and could 
divert management¶s attention from other business concerns. The law relating to the scope and validity of claims in 
the technology field in which we operate is still evolving and, consequently, intellectual property positions in our 
industry are generally uncertain. We cannot assure you that we will prevail in any of these potential suits or that the 
damages or other remedies awarded, if any, would be commercially valuable. 
 
The Compan\¶s sXccess depends on the e[perience and skill of the board of directors, its e[ecXtiYe officers and ke\ 
employees. 
 
In particular, we are dependent on Jurrien Swarts, our CEO and Director, Alex Abrams, our Director and Vivienne 
Cudahy, our Director. The Company has or intends to enter into an employment or board member agreement, as 
applicable, with each of Jurrien Swarts, Alex Abrams and Vivienne Cudahy however there can be no assurance that 
it will do so or that they will continue to be employed or engaged by the Company for a particular period of time. The 
loss of Jurrien Swarts, Alex Abrams, Vivienne Cudahy, or any member of the board of directors or executive officer 
could harm the Compan\¶s business, financial condition, cash flow and results of operations. 
 
Although dependent on certain key personnel, the Company does not have any key person life insurance policies 
on any such people. 
 
We are dependent on certain key personnel in order to conduct our operations and execute our business plan, however, 
the Company has not purchased any insurance policies with respect to those individuals in the event of their death or 
disability. Therefore, if any of these personnel die or become disabled, the Company will not receive any compensation 
to assist with such person¶s absence. The loss of such person could negativel\ affect the Compan\ and our operations. 
We have no way to guarantee key personnel will stay with the Company, as many states do not enforce non-
competition agreements, and therefore acquiring key man insurance will not ameliorate all of the risk of relying on 
key personnel. 
 
We depend on third-party service providers and outsource providers for a variety of services and we outsource a 
number of our non-core functions and operations.  
 
In certain instances, we rely on single or limited service providers and outsourcing vendors around the world because 
the relationship is advantageous due to quality, price, or lack of alternative sources. If production or service was 
interrupted and we were not able to find alternate third-party providers, we could experience disruptions in operations 
including higher re-engineering costs. If outsourcing services are interrupted or not performed or the performance is 
poor, this could impact our ability to process, record and report transactions with our customers and other constituents. 
Such interruptions in the provision of services could result in our inability to meet customer demand, damage our 
reputation and customer relationships and adversely affect our business.  
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As we expand our business, protecting our intellectual property will become increasingly important.  
 
The protective steps we have taken may be inadequate to deter our competitors from using our proprietary information. 
In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may be required to initiate litigation against third parties, such as 
infringement lawsuits. Also, these third parties may assert claims against us with or without provocation. These 
lawsuits could be expensive, take significant time and could divert management¶s attention from other business 
concerns. The law relating to the scope and validity of claims in the technology field in which we operate is still 
evolving and, consequently, intellectual property positions in our industry are generally uncertain. We cannot assure 
you that we will prevail in any of these potential suits or that the damages or other remedies awarded, if any, would 
be commercially valuable.  
 
From time to time, third parties may claim that one or more of our products or services infringe their intellectual 
property rights.  
 
Any dispute or litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property could be costly and time-consuming due to 
the complexity of our technology and the uncertainty of intellectual property litigation and could divert our 
management and key personnel from our business operations. A claim of intellectual property infringement could 
force us to enter into a costly or restrictive license agreement, which might not be available under acceptable terms or 
at all, could require us to redesign our products, which would be costly and time-consuming, and/or could subject us 
to an injunction against development and sale of certain of our products or services. We may have to pay substantial 
damages, including damages for past infringement if it is ultimately determined that our product candidates infringe 
a third part\¶s proprietar\ rights. Even if these claims are without merit, defending a lawsuit takes significant time, 
ma\ be expensive and ma\ divert management¶ s attention from other business concerns. An\ public announcements 
related to litigation or interference proceedings initiated or threatened against as could cause our business to be 
harmed. Our intellectual property portfolio may not be useful in asserting a counterclaim, or negotiating a license, in 
response to a claim of intellectual property infringement. In certain of our businesses we rely on third party intellectual 
property licenses and we cannot ensure that these licenses will be available to us in the future on favorable terms or at 
all.  
 
We must correctly predict, identify, and interpret changes in consumer preferences and demand, offer new products 
to meet those changes, and respond to competitive innovation.  
 
Consumer preferences may result in the need for our products to change continually. Our success depends on our 
ability to predict, identify, and interpret the tastes and habits of consumers and to offer products that appeal to 
consumer preferences. If we do not offer products that appeal to consumers, our sales and market share will decrease. 
We must distinguish between short-term fads, mid-term trends, and long-term changes in consumer preferences. If we 
do not accurately predict which shifts in consumer preferences will be long-term, or if we fail to introduce new and 
improved products to satisfy those preferences, our sales could decline. If we fail to expand our product offerings 
successfully across product categories, or if we do not rapidly develop products in faster growing and more profitable 
categories, demand for our products could decrease, which could materially and adversely affect our product sales, 
financial condition, and results of operations.  
 
Damage to our reputation could negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Our reputation and the quality of our brand are critical to our business and success in existing markets, and will be 
critical to our success as we enter new markets. Any incident that erodes consumer loyalty for our brand could 
significantly reduce its value and damage our business. We may be adversely affected by any negative publicity, 
regardless of its accuracy. Also, there has been a marked increase in the use of social media platforms and similar 
devices, including blogs, social media websites and other forms of internet-based communications that provide 
individuals with access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested persons. The availability of information 
on social media platforms is virtually immediate as is its impact. Information posted may be adverse to our interests 
or may be inaccurate, each of which may harm our performance, prospects or business. The harm may be immediate 
and may disseminate rapidly and broadly, without affording us an opportunity for redress or correction. 
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Security breaches of confidential customer information, in connection with our electronic processing of credit and 
debit card transactions, or confidential employee information may adversely affect our business. 
 
Our business requires the collection, transmission and retention of personally identifiable information, in various 
information technology systems that we maintain and in those maintained by third parties with whom we contract to 
provide services. The integrity and protection of that data is critical to us. The information, security and privacy 
requirements imposed by governmental regulation are increasingly demanding. Our systems may not be able to satisfy 
these changing requirements and customer and employee expectations, or may require significant additional 
investments or time in order to do so. A breach in the security of our information technology systems or those of our 
service providers could lead to an interruption in the operation of our systems, resulting in operational inefficiencies 
and a loss of profits. Additionall\, a significant theft, loss or misappropriation of, or access to, customers¶ or other 
proprietary data or other breach of our information technology systems could result in fines, legal claims or 
proceedings. 
 
The Company is not subject to Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and may lack the financial controls and procedures of 
public companies. 
 
The Company may not have the internal control infrastructure that would meet the standards of a public company, 
including the requirements of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002. As a privately-held (non-public) Company, the 
Company is currently not subject to the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, and its financial and disclosure controls and 
procedures reflect its status as a development stage, non-public company. There can be no guarantee that there are no 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the quality of the Company's financial and disclosure controls and 
procedures. If it were necessary to implement such financial and disclosure controls and procedures, the cost to the 
Company of such compliance could be substantial and could have a material adverse effect on the Company¶s results 
of operations. 
 
 
Risks Related to the Offering 
 
The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of the Securities or the terms of the 
Offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any Offering document or literature. 
 
You should not rel\ on the fact that our Form C is accessible through the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission¶s 
EDGAR filing system as an approval, endorsement or guarantee of compliance as it relates to this Offering. The U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission has not reviewed this Form C, nor any document or literature related to this 
Offering. 
 
Neither the Offering nor the Securities have been registered under federal or state securities laws. 
 
No governmental agency has reviewed or passed upon this Offering or the Securities. Neither the Offering nor the 
Securities have been registered under federal or state securities laws. Investors will not receive any of the benefits 
available in registered Offerings, which may include access to quarterly and annual financial statements that have 
been audited by an independent accounting firm. Investors must therefore assess the adequacy of disclosure and the 
fairness of the terms of this Offering based on the information provided in this Form C and the accompanying exhibits. 
 
The Company's management may have broad discretion in how the Company uses the net proceeds of the 
Offering. 
 
Unless the Company has agreed to a specific use of the proceeds from the Offering, the Compan\¶s management will 
have considerable discretion over the use of proceeds from the Offering. You may not have the opportunity, as part 
of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately. 
 
The Company has the right to limit indiYidXal InYestor commitment amoXnts based on the Compan\¶s 
determination of an InYestor¶s sophistication. 
 
The Company may prevent any Investor from committing more than a certain amount in this Offering based on the 
Compan\¶s determination of the Investor¶s sophistication and abilit\ to assume the risk of the investment. This means 
that \our desired investment amount ma\ be limited or lowered based solel\ on the Compan\¶s determination and not 
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in line with relevant investment limits set forth by the Regulation CF rules. This also means that other Investors may 
receive larger allocations of the Offering based solel\ on the Compan\¶s determination. 
 
The Company has the right to extend the Offering Deadline. 
 
The Company may extend the Offering Deadline beyond what is currently stated herein. This means that your 
investment may continue to be held in escrow while the Company attempts to raise the Target Amount even after the 
Offering Deadline stated herein is reached. While you have the right to cancel your investment in the event the 
Company extends the Offering Deadline, if you choose to reconfirm your investment, your investment will not be 
accruing interest during this time and will simply be held until such time as the new Offering Deadline is reached 
without the Company receiving the Target Amount, at which time it will be returned to you without interest or 
deduction, or the Company receives the Target Amount, at which time it will be released to the Company to be used 
as set forth herein. Upon or shortly after the release of such funds to the Company, the Securities will be issued and 
distributed to you. 
 
The Company may also end the Offering early.  
 
If the Target Offering Amount is met after 21 calendar days, but before the Offering Deadline, the Company can end 
the Offering by providing notice to Investors at least 5 business days prior to the end of the Offering. This means your 
failure to participate in the Offering in a timely manner, may prevent you from being able to invest in this Offering ± 
it also means the Company may limit the amount of capital it can raise during the Offering by ending the Offering 
early. 
 
The Company has the right to conduct multiple closings during the Offering.  
 
If the Company meets certain terms and conditions, an intermediate close of the Offering can occur, which will allow 
the Company to draw down on half of the proceeds committed and captured in the Offering during the relevant period. 
The Company may choose to continue the Offering thereafter. Investors should be mindful that this means they can 
make multiple investment commitments in the Offering, which may be subject to different cancellation rights. For 
example, if an intermediate close occurs and later a material change occurs as the Offering continues, Investors whose 
investment commitments were previously closed upon will not have the right to re-confirm their investment as it will 
be deemed to have been completed prior to the material change. 
 
Risks Related to the Securities  
 
The Securities will not be freely tradable under the Securities Act until one year from the initial purchase date. 
Although the Securities may be tradable under federal securities law, state securities regulations may apply, and 
each Investor should consult with their attorney. 
 
You should be aware of the long-term nature of this investment. There is not now and likely will not ever be a public 
market for the Securities. Because the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act or under the 
securities laws of any state or foreign jurisdiction, the Securities have transfer restrictions and cannot be resold in the 
United States except pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF. It is not currently contemplated that registration under 
the Securities Act or other securities laws will be affected. Limitations on the transfer of the Securities may also 
adversely affect the price that you might be able to obtain for the Securities in a private sale. Investors should be aware 
of the long-term nature of their investment in the Company. Each Investor in this Offering will be required to represent 
that they are purchasing the Securities for their own account, for investment purposes and not with a view to resale or 
distribution thereof. 
 
Investors will not become equity holders until the Compan\ decides to conYert the SecXrities into ³CF ShadoZ 
SecXrities´ (the t\pe of eqXit\ secXrities issXable Xpon conYersion of the SecXrities) or Xntil there is a change of 
control or sale of sXbstantiall\ all of the Compan\¶s assets. 
 
Investors will not have an ownership claim to the Company or to any of its assets or revenues for an indefinite amount 
of time and depending on when and how the Securities are converted, the Investors may never become equity holders 
of the Company. Investors will not become equity holders of the Company unless the Company receives a future 
round of financing great enough to trigger a conversion and the Company elects to convert the Securities into CF 
Shadow Securities. The Company is under no obligation to convert the Securities into CF Shadow Securities. In certain 
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instances, such as a sale of the Company or substantially all of its assets, an initial public offering or a dissolution or 
bankruptcy, the Investors may only have a right to receive cash, to the extent available, rather than equity in the 
Company.  
 
Investors will not have voting rights, even upon conversion of the Securities into CF Shadow Securities. Upon the 
conversion of the Securities into CF Shadow Securities (which cannot be guaranteed), the holders of the CF 
Shadow Securities will be required to enter into a proxy with the Intermediary to ensure any statutory voting rights 
are voted in tandem with the majority holders of whichever series of securities the CF Shadow Securities follow. 
 
Investors will not have the right to vote upon matters of the Company even if and when their Securities are converted 
into CF Shadow Securities (the occurrence of which cannot be guaranteed). Upon such conversion, the CF Shadow 
Securities will have no voting rights and, in circumstances where a statutory right to vote is provided by state law, the 
CF Shadow Security holders are required to enter into a proxy agreement with the Intermediary to vote their CF 
Shadow Securities with the majority of the holder(s) of the securities issued in the round of equity financing that 
triggered the conversion right. For example, if the Securities are converted in connection with an offering of Series B 
Preferred Stock, Investors would receive CF Shadow Securities in the form of shares of Series B-CF Shadow Preferred 
Stock and would be required to enter into a proxy that allows the Intermediary to vote their shares of Series B-CF 
Shadow Preferred Stock consistent with the majority of the Series B Preferred Stockholders. Thus, Investors will 
essentially never be able to vote upon any matters of the Company. 
 
Investors will not be entitled to any inspection or information rights other than those required by law. 
 
Investors will not have the right to inspect the books and records of the Company or to receive financial or other 
information from the Company, other than as required by law. Other security holders of the Company may have such 
rights. Regulation CF requires only the provision of an annual report on Form C and no additional information. 
Additionally, there are numerous methods by which the Company can terminate annual report obligations, resulting 
in no information rights, contractual, statutory or otherwise, owed to Investors. This lack of information could put 
Investors at a disadvantage in general and with respect to other security holders, including certain security holders 
who have rights to periodic financial statements and updates from the Company such as quarterly unaudited financials, 
annual projections and budgets, and monthly progress reports, among other things. 
 
InYestors Zill be Xnable to declare the SecXrit\ in ³defaXlt´ and demand repa\ment. 
 
Unlike convertible notes and some other securities, the Securities do not have an\ ³default´ provisions upon which 
Investors will be able to demand repayment of their investment. The Company has ultimate discretion as to whether 
or not to convert the Securities upon a future equity financing and Investors have no right to demand such conversion. 
Only in limited circumstances, such as a liquidity event, may Investors demand payment and even then, such payments 
will be limited to the amount of cash available to the Company. 
 
The Company may never elect to convert the Securities or undergo a liquidity event and Investors may have to hold 
the Securities indefinitely. 
 
The Company may never conduct a future equity financing or elect to convert the Securities if such future equity 
financing does occur. In addition, the Company may never undergo a liquidity event such as a sale of the Company 
or an initial public offering. If neither the conversion of the Securities nor a liquidity event occurs, Investors could be 
left holding the Securities in perpetuity. The Securities have numerous transfer restrictions and will likely be highly 
illiquid, with no secondary market on which to sell them. The Securities are not equity interests, have no ownership 
rights, have no rights to the Compan\¶s assets or profits and have no voting rights or abilit\ to direct the Compan\ or 
its actions. 
 
Equity securities acquired upon conversion of the Securities may be significantly diluted as a consequence of 
subsequent equity financings. 
 
The Compan\¶s equit\ securities will be subject to dilution. The Compan\ intends to issue additional equit\ to 
employees and third-party financing sources in amounts that are uncertain at this time, and as a consequence holders 
of equity securities resulting from the conversion of the Securities will be subject to dilution in an unpredictable 
amount. Such dilution ma\ reduce the Investor¶s control and economic interests in the Company. 
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The amount of additional financing needed by the Company will depend upon several contingencies not foreseen at 
the time of this Offering. Generally, additional financing (whether in the form of loans or the issuance of other 
securities) will be intended to provide the Company with enough capital to reach the next major corporate milestone. 
If the funds received in an\ additional financing are not sufficient to meet the Compan\¶s needs, the Compan\ ma\ 
have to raise additional capital at a price unfavorable to their existing investors, including the holders of the Securities. 
The availability of capital is at least partially a function of capital market conditions that are beyond the control of the 
Company. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to accurately predict the future capital 
requirements necessary for success or that additional funds will be available from any source. Failure to obtain 
financing on favorable terms could dilute or otherwise severely impair the value of the Securities. 
 
In addition, the Company has certain equity grants and convertible securities outstanding. Should the Company enter 
into a financing that would trigger any conversion rights, the converting securities would further dilute the equity 
securities receivable by the holders of the Securities upon a qualifying financing. 
 
Equity securities issued upon conversion of the Securities may be substantially different from other equity securities 
offered or issued by the Company at the time of conversion. 
 
In the event the Company decides to exercise the conversion right, the Company will convert the Securities into equity 
securities that are materially different from the equity securities being issued to new investors at the time of conversion 
in many ways, including, but not limited to, liquidation preferences, dividend rights, or anti-dilution protection. 
Additionally, any equity securities issued at the Conversion Price (as defined in the Crowd SAFE agreement) shall 
have only such preferences, rights, and protections in proportion to the Conversion Price and not in proportion to the 
price per share paid by new investors receiving the equity securities. Upon conversion of the Securities, the Company 
may not provide the holders of such Securities with the same rights, preferences, protections, and other benefits or 
privileges provided to other investors of the Company. 
 
The forgoing paragraph is only a summary of a portion of the conversion feature of the Securities; it is not intended 
to be complete, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Crowd SAFE agreement, which is 
attached as Exhibit C. 
 
There is no present market for the Securities and we have arbitrarily set the price. 
 
The Offering price was not established in a competitive market. We have arbitrarily set the price of the Securities with 
reference to the general status of the securities market and other relevant factors. The Offering price for the Securities 
should not be considered an indication of the actual value of the Securities and is not based on our net worth or prior 
earnings. We cannot guarantee that the Securities can be resold at the Offering price or at any other price. 
 
In the event of the dissolution or bankruptcy of the Company, Investors will not be treated as debt holders and 
therefore are unlikely to recover any proceeds. 
 
In the event of the dissolution or bankruptcy of the Company, the holders of the Securities that have not been converted 
will be entitled to distributions as described in the Securities. This means that such holders will only receive 
distributions once all of the creditors and more senior security holders, including any holders of preferred stock, have 
been paid in full. Neither holders of the Securities nor holders of CF Shadow Securities can be guaranteed any proceeds 
in the event of the dissolution or bankruptcy of the Company. 
 
While the Securities provide mechanisms whereby holders of the Securities would be entitled to a return of their 
purchase amount upon the occurrence of certain events, if the Company does not have sufficient cash on hand, 
this obligation may not be fulfilled. 
 
Upon the occurrence of certain events, as provided in the Securities, holders of the Securities may be entitled to a 
return of the principal amount invested. Despite the contractual provisions in the Securities, this right cannot be 
guaranteed if the Company does not have sufficient liquid assets on hand. Therefore, potential Investors should not 
assume a guaranteed return of their investment amount. 
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There is no gXarantee of a retXrn on an InYestor¶s inYestment. 
 
There is no assurance that an Investor will realize a return on their investment or that they will not lose their entire 
investment. For this reason, each Investor should read this Form C and all exhibits carefully and should consult with 
their attorney and business advisor prior to making any investment decision. 
 
IN ADDITION TO THE RISKS LISTED ABOVE, RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES NOT PRESENTLY 
KNOWN, OR WHICH WE CONSIDER IMMATERIAL AS OF THE DATE OF THIS FORM C, MAY ALSO 
HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON OUR BUSINESS AND RESULT IN THE TOTAL LOSS OF YOUR 
INVESTMENT. 
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BUSINESS 
 
Description of the Business  
 
Stojo is a sustainable products lifestyle brand that manufactures and sells portable, collapsible, reusable food and 
beverage containers. 
 
Business Plan  
 
Within the next 12-18 months, we will be focused on product development to launch products in new categories. This 
will let us generate revenue in new categories and also help expand our footprint within retail. We currently have a 
line of sight to profitability within the next 12-18 months. 
 
TKe CRPSaQ\¶V PURdXcWV aQd/RU SeUYLceV  
 

Product / Service Description Current Market 
Stojo 8oz Mini Cup Collapsible coffee cup made from 

food-grade silicone and recyclable 
materials which means no BPAs, 
Phthalates, leads or glues. 

Designed for coffee lovers, this 
travel mug is perfect for all your 
favorite beverages, hot or cold. 
Currently sells Wholesale and direct 
to consumer.  
 

Stojo 12oz Pocket Cup Collapsible coffee cup made from 
food-grade silicone and recyclable 
materials which means no BPAs, 
Phthalates, leads or glues. 

Designed for coffee lovers, this 
travel mug is perfect for all your 
favorite beverages, hot or cold. 
Currently sells Wholesale and direct 
to consumer. 
 

Stojo 16oz Biggie Cup Collapsible coffee cup made from 
food-grade silicone and recyclable 
materials which means no BPAs, 
Phthalates, leads or glues. 

Designed for coffee lovers, this 
travel mug is perfect for all your 
favorite beverages, hot or cold. 
Currently sells Wholesale and direct 
to consumer. 
 

Stojo 24oz Titan Cup Collapsible coffee cup made from 
food-grade silicone and recyclable 
materials which means no BPAs, 
Phthalates, leads or glues. 

Designed for coffee lovers, this 
travel mug is perfect for all your 
favorite beverages, hot or cold. 
Currently sells Wholesale and direct 
to consumer. 
 

Stojo 20oz Water Bottle Reusable, convenient, collapsible 
water bottle made from food-grade 
silicone that is LFGB Certified. This 
foldable bottle is BPA-free, lead-free, 
and phthalate-free. 
 

Currently sells Wholesale and direct 
to consumer. 

 
Competition 
 
There are two types of competitors in the drinkware market 1) low quality knockoffs and 2) major players. The low 
quality knockoffs can be found on platforms like Amazon and other marketplaces globally and tend to eat into 
marketshare early-on but they cannot keep up with companies that have a healthy innovative product pipeline and a 
brand that consumers believe truly understand them and are aligned with their core values and beliefs regarding 
sustainability. The major players in the drinkware space include companies like Contigo, S'well, Yeti, and Hydro 
Flask. The problem with these players is that their products are heavy, bulky, hard to clean, not easy to travel with. 
They also do not have a core mission of ending disposable culture to lead them, thus lack a level of connection with 
customers that are looking for companies to be more sustainable. 
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Customer Base 
 
We sell our products Wholesale (Retail, Co-Branding, Food Service, etc.) and DTC. Nearly 70% of our customers are 
between the ages of 25 and 44. Around 80% of our customer are female. 
 
Supply Chain 
 
Stojo works with two agencies that leverage three factories, which are geographically diversified across Asia. Both 
agencies have global reach. Should all three factories stop production, Stojo would first locate new factories using the 
agencies. The process would take approximately 120 days. Should both agencies become unavailable, it would take 
approximately 180 days to locate new factories unrelated to the agencies, to get them up and running.  
 
Intellectual Property  
 
Patents 

Application or 
Registration # 

Title Description File Date Grant Date Country 

9,492,033 Collapsible 
Travel Tumbler 

 

Patent July 2, 2015 November 15, 2016 USA 

D756,705 Collapsible 
Travel Tumbler 
 

Design Patent April 29, 2015 May 24, 2016 USA 

ZL 201480055769.8 Collapsible 
Travel Tumbler 
 

Patent August 10, 2014 November 24, 2017 China 

9,119,507 
 

Collapsible 
Travel Tumbler 
 

Patent 
 

August 10, 2014 
 

September 1, 2015 
 

USA 
 

 
Trademarks 

Application or 
Registration # 

Mark Description Grant Date Country 

18028019 
 

STOJO 
 

Trademark 
 

November 14, 2016 
 

China 
 

4,999,661 STOJO Trademark July 12, 2016 USA 
 

40-1193941-0000 STOJO Trademark June 21, 2016 Republic of Korea 
 

014763379 STOJO Trademark February 19, 2016 European Union 
 

 
 
Governmental/Regulatory Approval and Compliance  
 
The Company is subject to and affected by the laws and regulations of both U.S. federal, state and local governmental 
authorities, and E.U. laws. The company's products are manufactured to meet specifications set by the FDA (U.S.) 
and LFGB (German / EU) relating to containers used primarily to hold and store food and beverage. These laws and 
regulations are subject to change.  

Litigation  
 
The Company a party to a lawsuit related to a dispute under the Americans with Disabilities Act. We anticipate this 
claim to be settled in our favor in an amount of less than $25,000. 
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USE OF PROCEEDS 
 
The following table illustrates how we intend to use the net proceeds received from this Offering. The values below 
are not inclusive of payments to financial and legal service providers and escrow related fees, all of which were 
incurred in the preparation of this Offering and are due in advance of the closing of the Offering. 
 

Use of Proceeds 
% of Proceeds if 
Target Offering 
Amount Raised 

Amount if Target 
Offering Amount 

Raised 

% of Proceeds if 
Maximum 

Offering Amount 
Raised 

Amount if 
Maximum 

Offering Amount 
Raised 

Intermediary Fees 6% $1,500 6% $64,200 

Research & 
Development(1) 35% $8,750 35% $374,500 

General 
Marketing(2) 25% $6,250 25% $267,500 

Sales Growth(3) 20% $5,000 20% $214,000 

General Working 
Capital(4) 14% $3,500 14% $149,800 

Total 100% $25,000 100% $1,070,000 

 
The Compan\ has discretion to alter the use of proceeds set forth above to adhere to the Compan\¶s business plan and 
liquidit\ requirements. For example, economic conditions ma\ alter the Compan\¶s general marketing or general 
working capital requirements. 
 
Set forth below are detailed description of how we intend to use the net proceeds of this Offering for any category in 
excess of ten percent (10%) in the table above. 
 

(1) Research & Development - We will be focused on launching new products such as food containers, a kids¶ 
line, and more hydration drinkware. 
 

(2) General Marketing - We are focused on expanding our DTC channel through marketing-related activities, 
which will include PR opportunities, synergistic partnerships, and targeted online ads. 
 

(3) Sales Growth - We will increase our e-commerce presence, as well as, work with new and existing retail 
partners in selling them our new product lineup. 
 

(4) General Working Capital - We will use to fund production of select new products. 
 

 
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND MANAGERS  

 
The directors, officers, and managers of the Company are listed below along with all positions and offices held at the 
Company and their principal occupation and employment responsibilities for the past three (3) years. 
 

Name Positions and Offices Held at 
the Company 

Principal Occupation and 
Employment Responsibilities for the 
Last Three (3) Years 

Education 

Jurrien Swarts Chief Executive Officer and 
Director 

Stojo Products Inc., Chief Executive 
Officer (March 2018 - Current) 
 

Dartmouth 
College, B.A., 
Chinese (2002) 
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Urban Tumbler LLC, Chief 
Executive Officer (January 2014 ± 
Current) 
 

Alex Abrams Secretary and Director Stojo Products Inc., Secretary 
(March 2018) 
 
Stepstone Group, LP, Managing 
Director (January 2016 ± Current) 
 
- a global private markets firm 
providing customized investment, 
portfolio monitoring and advice to 
investors 
 

Boston College 
Law School, 
J.D. (2004) 
 
University of 
Pennsylvania, 
B.A., American 
History (2001) 
 

Vivienne Cudahy Director Auteur Limited, Managing Director 
& Founder (May 2010 ± Current) 
 
-A distributor of home innovation and 
is the exclusive UK & Eire distributor 
for bobble, Corkcicle, Hip, Roll'eat, 
Stojo and Soma 

The Arts 
University 
College at 
Bournemouth, 
Higher National 
Diploma, 
Fashion 
Marketing 
(1995) 

 
KEY PERSONNEL 

 
Name Positions and Offices Held at 

the Company 
Principal Occupation and 
Employment Responsibilities for the 
Last Three (3) Years 

Education 

Jake Kelsey ³acting´ Chief Operating Officer Stojo Products Inc.,  
-³acting´ Chief Operating Officer 
(August 2018 - Current) 
-Operations Manager (March 2018 ± 
August 2018) 
 
(Malin+Goetz), Retail Operations & 
Education Manager (May 2017 ± 
March 2018)  
 
 

Circle in the 
Square, 
Certificate, 
Musical Theatre  
(2010) 
 

 
Indemnification 
 
Indemnification is authorized by the Company to managers, officers or controlling persons acting in their professional 
capacity pursuant to Delaware law. Indemnification includes expenses such as attorne\¶s fees and, in certain 
circumstances, judgments, fines and settlement amounts actually paid or incurred in connection with actual or 
threatened actions, suits or proceedings involving such person, except in certain circumstances where a person is 
adjudged to be guilty of gross negligence or willful misconduct, unless a court of competent jurisdiction determines 
that such indemnification is fair and reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
Employees 
  
The Company currently has 9 employees. 
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CAPITALIZATION, DEBT AND OWNERSHIP 
 
Capitalization 
 
The Compan\¶s authori]ed capital stock consists of 10,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share 
(the ³Common Stock´) and 2,500,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the ³Preferred Stock´). 
At the closing of this Offering, assuming only the Target Offering Amount is sold, 4,870,720 shares of Common Stock 
will be issued and outstanding. 
 
Outstanding Capital Stock 
 
As of the date of this Form C, the Compan\¶s outstanding capital stock consists of:  
 

Type Common Stock 

Amount Outstanding 4,870,720 

Par Value Per Share $0.0001 

Voting Rights 1 vote per share. 

Anti-Dilution Rights None. 

How this security may limit, dilute or qualify the 
Security issued pursuant to Regulation CF 

The Company may issue additional shares of Common 
Stock at a later date. The issuance of such additional 
shares of Common Stock would be dilutive and could 
potentially have an adverse effect on the value of the 

Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF. 

Percentage ownership of the Company by the 
holders of such security (assuming conversion prior 

to the Offering if convertible securities). 
73.70% 

Additional Information 
Please see the section entitled ³Transactions with 

Related Persons and Conflicts of Interest´ for further 
details. 
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Outstanding Options, Safes, Convertible Notes, Warrants  
 
As of the date of this Form C, the Company has the following additional securities outstanding: 

Type Option to Purchase Common Stock 

Amount Outstanding 412,500 

Voting Rights None. 

Anti-Dilution Rights None. 

How this security may limit, dilute or qualify the 
Security issued pursuant to Regulation CF 

The Company may issue additional Options at a later 
date. The availability of shares of Common Stock into 
which such additional Options are convertible, would 

be dilutive and could potentially have an adverse effect 
on the value of the Securities sold pursuant to 

Regulation CF. 

Percentage ownership of the Company by the 
holders of such security (assuming conversion prior 

to the Offering if convertible securities). 
6.24% 

 
 

Type Warrant to Purchase Common Stock 

Amount Outstanding 562,500 

Voting Rights None. 

Anti-Dilution Rights None. 

How this security may limit, dilute or qualify the 
Security issued pursuant to Regulation CF 

The Company may issue additional Warrants at a later 
date. The availability of shares of Common Stock into 
which such additional Warrants are convertible, would 
be dilutive and could potentially have an adverse effect 

on the value of the Securities sold pursuant to 
Regulation CF. 

Percentage ownership of the Company by the 
holders of such security (assuming conversion prior 

to the Offering if convertible securities). 
8.51% 
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Type SAFE (Simple Agreement for Future Equity) 

Face Value $75,000 

Voting Rights None. 

Anti-Dilution Rights None. 

Material Terms  

Conversion(1) 
 

Rights upon a Liquidity Event(2) 
 

Rights upon a Dissolution Event(3) 
 

Pro Rata Rights(4)  

How this security may limit, dilute or qualify the 
Security issued pursuant to Regulation CF 

The Company may issue additional SAFEs at a later 
date. The availability of shares of capital stock of the 

Company into which such additional SAFEs are 
convertible, would be dilutive and could potentially 
have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities 

sold pursuant to Regulation CF. 

Percentage ownership of the Company by the 
holders of such security (assuming conversion prior 

to the Offering if convertible securities). 
1.13%(5) 

(1) If there is a bona fide transaction or series of transactions with the principal purpose of raising capital, 
pursuant to which the Company issues and sells shares of preferred stock at a fixed pre-money valuation 
with an aggregate sales price of not less than $250,000 (an ³Equit\ Financing´) before the expiration or 
termination of the SAFE, the Company will automatically issue to the holder of the SAFE, a number of 
shares of preferred stock sold in the Equity Financing equal to the face amount of the SAFE divided by 
the price per share of the preferred stock sold in the Equity Financing. 
 

(2) If there is a liquidity event before the expiration or termination of the SAFE, the holder of the SAFE 
will, at its option, either (i) receive a cash payment equal to the face amount of the SAFE, or (ii) 
automatically receive from the Company a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the face amount 
of the SAFE divided by the fair market value of the Common Stock at the time of the liquidity event, if 
the holder of the SAFE fails to select the cash option. 
 

(3) If there is a dissolution event before the expiration or termination of the SAFE, the Company will pay 
an amount equal to the face amount of the SAFE, due and payable to the holder of the SAFE immediately 
prior to, or concurrent with , the consummation of the dissolution event. Such amount will be paid prior 
and in preference to any distribution of any of the assets of the Company to holders of outstanding capital 
stock of the Company by reason of their ownership thereof. 

 
(4) The holder of the SAFE shall have a right to purchase its pro rata share of private placements of securities 

by the Company occurring after the Equity Financing, based on the ratio of (i) the number of shares of 
capital stock held by the such holder immediately prior to the issuance of the securities to (ii) the total 
number of shares of outstanding capital stock of the Company on a fully diluted basis, calculated as of 
immediately prior to the issuance of the securities. 

 
(5) Percentage ownership assumes conversion of the face amount of the SAFE upon an Equity Financing in 

which new investors have paid a price per share of $1.00 per share, into shares of preferred stock of the 
Company that is convertible into Common Stock at a 1:1 conversion ratio. 
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Type Convertible Note (8%) 

Face Value $201,373 

Voting Rights None. 

Anti-Dilution Rights None. 

Material Terms  Conversion(1) 

How this security may limit, dilute or qualify the 
Security issued pursuant to Regulation CF 

The Company may issue additional Convertible Notes 
at a later date. The availability of shares of capital stock 
of the Company into which such additional Convertible 

Notes are convertible, would be dilutive and could 
potentially have an adverse effect on the value of the 

Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF. 

Interest Rate and Amortization Schedule 

8% per annum. Unless earlier converted according to 
the terms of the note, the principal amount and any 

unpaid but accrued interest thereunder, shall be due and 
payable at the election of the holders of a majority of 
the principal balance of all notes, upon an event of 

default. 

Description of Collateral Unsecured. 

Maturity Date July 1, 2021 

Percentage ownership of the Company by the 
holders of such security (assuming conversion prior 

to the Offering if convertible securities). 
5.87%(4) 

Additional Information 
Please see the section entitled ³Transactions with 

Related Persons and Conflicts of Interest´ for further 
details. 

(1) Conversion upon a Qualified Financing. In the event that the Company conducts a bona fide financing 
transaction resulting in aggregate proceeds to the Company of at least $750,000, at a pre-financing price 
per share equal to or greater than the quotient of $4,000,000, divided by the total number of shares of 
capital stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such transaction (such transaction a 
³Qualified Financing´), then the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the note and all accrued and 
unpaid interest on the note will automatically convert, into the same class and series of capital stock of 
the Company sold in the Qualified Financing, a purchase price equal to the lesser of (i) the product of 
(A) the price paid per share of capital stock by investors in the Qualified Financing and (B) 80%, and 
(ii)the quotient of (A) $4,000,000, divided by (B) the total number of shares of capital stock of the 
Company outstanding immediately prior to the initial closing of the Qualified Financing. 
 

(2) Conversion after the Maturity Date. In the event that a Qualified Financing has not occurred prior to the 
maturity date of the note, then the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the note and all accrued 
and unpaid interest on the note will automatically convert into shares of Common Stock at a price per 
share equal to the quotient of the lesser of (i) fair market value or (ii) $4,000,000, divided by the total 
number of shares of capital stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to the maturity date of 
the note. 

 
(3) Conversion upon a Change of Control Prior to the Maturity Date. Upon a change of control prior to a 

Qualified Financing or the maturity date of the note, the note and all amounts due thereunder will 
automatically convert, immediately prior to such change of control, into shares of Common Stock at a 
price per share equal to the quotient of $4,000,000, divided by the total number of shares of capital stock 
of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such change of control. 
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(4) Percentage ownership assumes conversion of the principal amount of the note and any accrued but 

unpaid interest over 24 months due thereon as of the maturity date of the note, upon a Qualified 
Financing, into shares of preferred stock of the Company that is convertible into Common Stock at a 1:1 
conversion ratio, at a pre-money valuation of $4,000,000. 

 

Type Convertible Note 

Face Value $165,000 

Voting Rights None. 

Anti-Dilution Rights None. 

Material Terms  Conversion(1) 

Interest Rate and Amortization Schedule 

5% per annum. Unless earlier converted according to 
the terms of the note, the principal amount and any 

unpaid but accrued interest thereunder, shall be due and 
payable at the election of the holders of a majority of 
the principal balance of all notes, upon an event of 

default.  

Description of Collateral Unsecured. 

Maturity Date July 1, 2021.  

How this security may limit, dilute or qualify the 
Security issued pursuant to Regulation CF 

The Company may issue additional Convertible Notes 
at a later date. The availability of shares of capital stock 
of the Company into which such additional Convertible 

Notes are convertible, would be dilutive and could 
potentially have an adverse effect on the value of the 

Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF. 

Percentage ownership of the Company by the 
holders of such security (assuming conversion prior 

to the Offering if convertible securities). 
4.55%(4) 

(1) Conversion upon a Qualified Financing. In the event that the Company conducts a bona fide financing 
transaction resulting in aggregate proceeds to the Company of at least $750,000, at a pre-financing price 
per share equal to or greater than the quotient of $4,000,000, divided by the total number of shares of 
capital stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such transaction (such transaction a 
³Qualified Financing´), then the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the note and all accrued and 
unpaid interest on the note will automatically convert, into the same class and series of capital stock of 
the Company sold in the Qualified Financing, a purchase price equal to the lesser of (i) the product of 
(A) the price paid per share of capital stock by investors in the Qualified Financing and (B) 80%, and 
(ii)the quotient of (A) $4,000,000, divided by (B) the total number of shares of capital stock of the 
Company outstanding immediately prior to the initial closing of the Qualified Financing. 
 

(2) Conversion after the Maturity Date. In the event that a Qualified Financing has not occurred prior to the 
maturity date of the note, then the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the note and all accrued 
and unpaid interest on the note will automatically convert into shares of Common Stock at a price per 
share equal to the quotient of the lesser of (i) fair market value or (ii) $4,000,000, divided by the total 
number of shares of capital stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to the maturity date of 
the note. 

 
(3) Conversion upon a Change of Control Prior to the Maturity Date. Upon a change of control prior to a 

Qualified Financing or the maturity date of the note, the note and all amounts due thereunder will 
automatically convert, immediately prior to such change of control, into shares of Common Stock at a 
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price per share equal to the quotient of $4,000,000, divided by the total number of shares of capital stock 
of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such change of control. 

 
(4) Percentage ownership assumes conversion of the principal amount of the note and any accrued but 

unpaid interest over 24 months due thereon as of the maturity date of the note, upon a Qualified 
Financing, into shares of preferred stock of the Company that is convertible into Common Stock at a 1:1 
conversion ratio, at a pre-money valuation of $4,000,000. 

 
Outstanding Debt 
 
As of the date of this Form C, in addition to the Convertible Notes listed above, the Company has the following debt 
outstanding:  
 

Type Term Loan  

Amount Outstanding $150,000 

Interest Rate and Amortization Schedule 

3.75% per annum. 
 

Installment payments, including principal and interest 
of $731.00 monthly will begin twelve (12) months 

from the date of issuance of the promissory note. The 
balance of principal and interest will be payable thirty 

(30) years from the date of the promissory note. 

Description of Collateral 
 

All assets. 
 

Maturity Date May 29, 2050 
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Type Term Loan 

Amount Outstanding $157,530 

Interest Rate and Amortization Schedule 

0.98% per annum. 
 

For the period beginning on the date of issuance of the 
note, and ending six (6) months thereafter (the 
³Deferral Period´), no pa\ments will be due. 

Thereafter, monthly payments of principal and interest 
in such equal amount required to fully amortize the 
principal amount outstanding on the note on the last 

day of the Deferral Period by the maturity date of the 
note. Any principal balance and interest due thereon 
outstanding on the maturity date of the note, will be 
due and payable on the maturity date, unless such 
amounts are forgiven under the terms of the loan. 

Description of Collateral Unsecured. 

Other Material Terms 

The principal amount of the loan may be forgivable 
under the terms of the U.S. Small Business 

Administration¶ s ³ Pa\check Protection Program´  
created pursuant to Section 1102 of the Coronavirus 
Air, Relief, and Economic Security Act, commonly 

referred to as the ³ Cares Act´ . 

Maturity Date April 6, 2022 

 

Type Revolving Line of Credit 

Amount Outstanding $39,482 

Interest Rate and Amortization Schedule 15% per annum. Payments of principal and interest in 
the amount of $850 are due and payable monthly. 

Description of Collateral Secured by specific assets of the Company held by the 
grantor. 

Maturity Date N/A 

 

Type Revolving Line of Credit 

Amount Outstanding $7,023 

Interest Rate and Amortization Schedule 15% per annum. Payments of principal and interest in 
the amount of $200 are due and payable monthly. 

Description of Collateral Secured by specific assets of the Company held by the 
grantor. 

Maturity Date N/A 
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Ownership  
 
The table below lists the beneficial owners of twenty percent (20%) or more of the Compan\¶s outstanding voting 
equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power, are listed along with the amount they own. 
 
 

Name Amount and Type or Class Held Percentage Ownership 

Jurrien Swarts 2,560,540 shares of Common 
Stock* 

52.6% 

* A majority of such shares are held by Black Consulting, LLC. Please see the section entitled ³Transactions 
with Related Persons and Conflicts of Interest´ for further details. 
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Please see the financial information listed on the cover page of this Form C and attached hereto in addition to 
the following information. Financial statements are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
Operations  
 
Stojo Products Inc. (which ma\ be referred to as the ³Compan\´, ³we,´ ³us,´ or ³our´) was registered in Delaware on 
March 22, 2018. The Company is a direct-to-consumer, business-to-business, and wholesale global operation that 
produces houseware goods designed for optimal portabilit\ and sustainabilit\. The Compan\¶s headquarters are in 
Brookl\n, New York. The compan\ began operations in 2018. The Compan\¶s founders previousl\ ran Urban 
Tumbler LLC, a New York Limited Liability Company formed on July 30, 2012, before creating a Delaware 
corporation. The financials do not contain consolidated results and activities. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or less at the 
time of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash consists of funds held in the Compan\¶s checking account. As of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had $646,049 and $475,013 of cash on hand, respectively. 
 
As of October 5, 2020 the Company had an aggregate of approximately $554,031 in cash and cash equivalents, leaving 
the Company with approximately six (6) months of runway. 
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources  
 
The proceeds from the Offering are essential to our operations. We plan to use the proceeds as set forth above under 
the section titled ³Use of Proceeds´, which is an indispensable element of our business strategy. 
 
The Company currently does not have any additional outside sources of capital other than the proceeds from the 
Offering. 
 
Capital Expenditures and Other Obligations  
 
The Company does not intend to make any material capital expenditures in the near future. 
 
Valuation 
 
The Company has ascribed no pre-Offering valuation to the Company; the securities are priced arbitrarily. 
 
Material Changes and Other Information  
 
Trends and Uncertainties  
 
After reviewing the above discussion of the steps the Company intends to take, potential Investors should consider 
whether achievement of each step within the estimated time frame will be realistic in their judgment. Potential 
Investors should also assess the consequences to the Company of any delays in taking these steps and whether the 
Company will need additional financing to accomplish them. 
 
Please see the financial statements attached as Exhibit A for subsequent events and applicable disclosures. 
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Previous Offerings of Securities 
 
We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:  
 

Security Type Money Raised 

Amount of 
Securities 

Issued/Shares 
Issuable upon 

Exercise 

Use of 
Proceeds Issue Date 

Exemption 
from 

Registration 
Used or Public 

Offering 

Option to 
Purchase 

Common Stock 
- 662,500 shares - 

April 18, 2019 
April 29, 2019, 

October 16, 2019,  
November 12, 2019,  

January 23, 2020, 
February 3, 2020 

Rule 701 

SAFE (Simple 
Agreement for 
Future Equity) 

$75,000 1 SAFE 

Product 
Development, 

Hiring Staff, IP 
Protection, 
Brand and 
Website 
Refresh 

April 25, 2019 Section 4(a)(2) 

Common Stock $625,000 768,220 shares 

Product 
Development, 

Hiring Staff, IP 
Protection, 
Brand and 
Website 
Refresh 

December 21, 2018, 
January 28, 2019, 

February 13, 2019, 
April 18, 2019 

Section 4(a)(2) 

Convertible 
Note $165,000 3 notes 

Product 
Development, 

Hiring Staff, IP 
Protection, 
Brand and 
Website 
Refresh 

April 24, 2018,  
June 20, 2018 Section 4(a)(2) 

Convertible 
Note $201,373 3 notes 

Product 
Development, 

Hiring Staff, IP 
Protection, 
Brand and 
Website 
Refresh 

April 24, 2018,  
June 20, 2018 Section 4(a)(2) 

Warrant to 
Purchase 

Common Stock 
- 562,500 shares - April 24, 2018 Section 4(a)(2) 

Common Stock $41.03 4,102,500 
shares 

General 
Working 
Capital 

March 22, 2018, 
December 19, 2018 Section 4(a)(2) 
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See the section titled ³Capitalization and Ownership´ for more information regarding the securities issued in our 
previous offerings of securities. 
 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
From time to time the Company may engage in transactions with related persons. Related persons are defined as any 
director or officer of the Company; any person who is the beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of the 
Compan\¶s outstanding voting equit\ securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; an\ promoter of the 
Company; any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons or an entity controlled by any such person 
or persons. Additionally, the Company will disclose here any transaction since the beginning of the issuer's last fiscal 
year, or any currently proposed transaction, to which the issuer was or is to be a party and the amount involved exceeds 
five percent (5%) of the aggregate amount of capital raised by the issuer in reliance on section 4(a)(6), including the 
Target Offering Amount of this Offering, and the counter party is either (i) any director or officer of the issuer; (ii) 
any person who is, as of the most recent practicable date but no earlier than 120 days prior to the date the offering 
statement or report is filed, the beneficial owner of twenty percent (20%) or more of the issuer's outstanding voting 
equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; (iii) if the issuer was incorporated or organized within the 
past three years, any promoter of the issuer; or (iv) any member of the family of any of the foregoing persons, which 
includes a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, mother-
in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, and shall include adoptive 
relationships. The term spousal equivalent means a cohabitant occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that 
of a spouse. 
  
The Company has conducted the following transactions with related persons: 
 

Related Person/Entity Jurrien Swarts 

Relationship to the Company CEO and Director of the Company. 

Total amount of money involved $25,020 

Description of the transaction 

Jurrien Swarts is the principal of Black Consulting 
LLC, an entity which (i) has made an investment in the 

Company through a convertible note in the principal 
amount of $25,000, and (ii) holds 2,000,000 shares of 
our Common Stock which represents approximately 

41% of our outstanding voting securities of the 
Company. 

 
 

Related Person/Entity Vivienne Cudahy 

Relationship to the Company Director of the Company. 

Total amount of money involved $1,946,048 

Description of the transaction 
Vivienne Cudahy is the principal of Auteur Limited, a 
company that distributes Stojo products in the United 

Kingdom. 
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THE OFFERING AND THE SECURITIES 
 
The Offering  
 
The Company is offering a minimum amount of $25,000 (the ³Target Offering Amount´) and up to a maximum 
amount of $1,070,000 (the ³Maximum Offering Amount´) of Crowd SAFE (Simple Agreement for Future Equit\) 
(the ³Securities´) on a best efforts basis as described in this Form C (this ³OffeULQJ´). We must raise an amount equal 
to or greater than the Target Offering Amount by February 5, 2021 (the ³Offering Deadline´). Unless we raise at least 
the Target Offering Amount by the Offering Deadline, no Securities will be sold in this Offering, all investment 
commitments will be cancelled and all committed funds will be returned. Potential purchasers of the Securities are 
referred to herein as ³Investors´ or ³you´.  
 
The price of the Securities was determined arbitraril\, does not necessaril\ bear an\ relationship to the Compan\¶s 
asset value, net worth, revenues or other established criteria of value, and should not be considered indicative of the 
actual value of the Securities. The minimum amount that an Investor may invest in the Offering is $150, which is 
subject to adjustment in the Compan\¶s sole discretion. 
 
In order to purchase the Securities, you must make a commitment to purchase by completing the subscription process 
hosted by OpenDeal Portal LLC dba Republic (the ³Intermediary´), including compl\ing with the Intermediar\¶s 
know your customer (KYC) and anti-money laundering (AML) policies. If an Investor makes an investment 
commitment under a name that is not their legal name, they may be unable to redeem their Security 
indefinitely, and neither the Intermediary nor the Company are required to correct any errors or omissions 
made by the Investor.  
 
Investor funds will be held in escrow with Prime Trust, LLC until the Target Offering Amount has been met or 
exceeded and one or more closings occur. Investors may cancel an investment commitment until up to 48 hours prior 
to the Offering Deadline, or such earlier time as such earlier time the Company designates pursuant to Regulation CF, 
using the cancellation mechanism provided by the Intermediary. Investors using a credit card to invest must 
represent and warrant to cancel any investment commitment(s) by submitting a request through the 
Intermediary at least 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline, instead of attempting to claim fraud or claw back 
their committed funds.  
 
The Company will notify Investors when the Target Offering Amount has been reached. If the Company reaches the 
Target Offering Amount prior to the Offering Deadline, it may close the Offering at least five (5) days after reaching 
the Target Offering Amount and will provide notice of such closing to the Investors. If any material change (other 
than reaching the Target Offering Amount) occurs related to the Offering prior to the Offering Deadline, the Company 
will provide notice to Investors and receive reconfirmations from Investors who have already made commitments. If 
an Investor does not reconfirm their investment commitment after a material change is made to the terms of the 
Offering, the Investor¶s investment commitment will be cancelled and the committed funds will be returned without 
interest or deductions. If an Investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the Target Offering Amount 
is reached, the funds will be released to the Company upon the closing of the Offering and the Investor will receive 
the Securities in exchange for their investment. Any Investor funds received after the initial closing will be released 
to the Company upon a subsequent closing and the Investor will receive Securities via electronic certificate/PDF in 
exchange for their investment as soon as practicable thereafter. 
 
In the event an amount equal to two (2) times the Target Offering Amount is reached prior to the Offering Deadline, 
on such date or such earlier time the Company designates pursuant to Rule 304(b) of Regulation CF, the Company 
may conduct the first of multiple closings of the Offering early, provided that all Investors will receive notice of the 
new offering deadline at least five (5) business days prior to such new offering deadline (absent a material change that 
would require an extension of the Offering and reconfirmation of all investment commitments). Investors who 
committed on the date such notice is provided or prior to the issuance of such notice will be able to cancel their 
investment commitment until 48 hours before the new offering deadline.  
 
If the Company conducts an initial closing (the ³Initial Closing´), the Company agrees to only withdraw half of the 
proceeds that are in escrow and will only conduct such Initial Closing if there are more than twenty-one (21) days 
remaining before the Offering Deadline as of the date of the Initial Closing. The Company may only conduct another 
close (a ³Subsequent Closing´) before the Offering Deadline if the amount of investment commitments made as of 
the date of such Subsequent Closing exceeds two times the amount committed as of the date of the Initial Closing and 
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there are more than twenty-one (21) days remain before the Offering Deadline as of the date of such Subsequent 
Closing.  
 
The Company has agreed to return all funds to Investors in the event a Form C-W is ultimately filed in relation to this 
Offering, regardless of whether multiple closings are conducted. 
 
Investment commitments are not binding on the Company until they are accepted by the Company, which reserves 
the right to reject, in whole or in part, in its sole and absolute discretion, any investment commitment. If the Company 
rejects all or a portion of any investment commitment, the applicable prospective Investor¶s funds will be returned 
without interest or deduction. 
 
PRIME TRUST, THE ESCROW AGENT SERVICING THE OFFERING, HAS NOT INVESTIGATED THE 
DESIRABILITY OR ADVISABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THIS OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES 
OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, 
ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGEMENT ON THE MERITS OF THE OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES 
OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW AGENT¶S CONNECTION TO THE OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR 
THE LIMITED PURPOSES OF ACTING AS A SERVICE PROVIDER. 
 
The Securities 
 
We request that you please review this Form C and the Crowd SAFE instrument attached as Exhibit C, in conjunction 
with the following summary information. 
 
Transfer Agent and Registrar 
 
The Company will act as transfer agent and registrar for the Securities. 
 
Not Currently Equity Interests 
 
The Securities are not currently equity interests in the Company and merely provide a right to receive equity at some 
point in the future upon the occurrence of certain events. 
 
Dividends 
 
The Securities do not entitle Investors to any dividends. 
 
Conversion 
 
Upon each future equity financing resulting in proceeds to the Company of greater than $2,500,000 (each an ³Equity 
Financing´), the Securities are convertible at the option of the Company, into CF Shadow Securities, which are 
securities identical to those issued in such future Equity Financing except (1) they do not provide the right to vote on 
any matters except as required by law, (2) they require Investors to vote in accordance with the majority of the 
investors purchasing securities from the Company in such Equity Financing with respect to any such required vote 
and (3) they do not provide any inspection or information rights (other than those contemplated by Regulation CF or 
otherwise required by law). The Company has no obligation to convert the Securities in any Equity Financing. 
 
Conversion Upon the First Equity Financing 
 
If the Company elects to convert the Securities upon the first Equity Financing following the issuance of the Securities, 
the Investor will receive the number of CF Shadow Securities equal to the greater of the quotient obtained by dividing 
the amount the Investor paid for the Securities (the ³Purchase Amount´) by (a) or (b) immediately below (the 
³Conversion Price´): 
 
(a) the quotient of $13,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of issued and outstanding shares of capital stock, 
assuming full conversion or exercise of all convertible and exercisable securities then outstanding, including shares 
of convertible preferred stock and all outstanding vested or unvested options or warrants to purchase capital stock, but 
excluding (i) shares of capital stock reserved for future issuance under any equity incentive or similar plan, (ii) 
convertible promissory notes, (iii) any Simple Agreements for Future Equity, including the Securities (collectively, 
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³Safes´), and (iv) any equity securities that are issuable upon conversion of any outstanding convertible promissory 
notes or Safes; 
 
OR 
 
(b) the price per share of the securities sold in such Equity Financing. 
 
Such Conversion Price shall be deemed the ³First Equity Financing Price´. 
 
Conversion After the First Equity Financing 
 
If the Company elects to convert the Securities upon an Equity Financing other than the first Equity Financing 
following the issuance of the Securities, the Investor will receive the number of CF Shadow Securities equal to the 
quotient obtained by dividing (a) the Purchase Amount by (b) the First Equity Financing Price. 
 
Conversion Upon a Liquidity Event Prior to an Equity Financing 
 
In the case of the initial public offering of the Company¶s Common Stock (the ³IPO´) or a Change of Control (as 
defined below) of the Company (either of these events, a ³Liquidity Event´) prior to any Equity Financing, the 
Investor will receive, at the option of the Investor, either (i) a cash payment equal to the Purchase Amount subject to 
the following paragraph (the ³Cash Out Option´) or (ii) a number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal 
to the Purchase Amount divided by the quotient of (a) $13,000,000 divided by (b) the number, as of immediately prior 
to the Liquidit\ Event, of shares of the Compan\¶s capital stock outstanding (on an as-converted basis), assuming the 
exercise or conversion of all outstanding vested and unvested options, warrants and other convertible securities, but 
excluding: (x) shares of capital stock reserved for future issuance under any equity incentive or similar plan; (y) any 
Safes; and (z) convertible promissory notes. 
 
In connection with the Cash Out Option, the Purchase Amount will be due and payable by the Company to the Investor 
immediately prior to, or concurrent with, the consummation of the Liquidity Event. If there are not enough funds to 
pay the Investors and the holders of other Safes (collectively, the ³Cash-Out Investors´) in full, then all of the 
Compan\¶s available funds will be distributed with equal priority and pro rata among the Cash-Out Investors in 
proportion to their Purchase Amounts. 
 
³Change of Control´ as used above, means (i) a transaction or series of related transactions in which any person or 
group becomes the beneficial owner of more than fifty percent (50%) of the outstanding voting securities entitled to 
elect the Compan\¶s board of directors, (ii) an\ reorgani]ation, merger or consolidation of the Compan\, in which the 
outstanding voting security holders of the Company fail to retain at least a majority of such voting securities following 
such transaction or (iii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company. 
 
Conversion Upon a Liquidity Event Following an Equity Financing 
 
In the case of a Liquidity Event following any Equity Financing, the Investor will receive, at the option of the Investor, 
either (i) the Cash Out Option or (ii) a number of shares of the most recently issued capital stock equal to the Purchase 
Amount divided by the First Equity Financing Price. Shares of capital stock granted in connection therewith shall 
have the same liquidation rights and preferences as the shares of preferred stock issued in connection with the 
Compan\¶s most recent Equit\ Financing. 
 
Dissolution 
 
If there is a Dissolution Event (as defined below) before the Securities terminate, subject to the preferences applicable 
to any series of preferred stock then outstanding, the Company will distribute all proceeds legally available for 
distribution with equal priority among the (i) holders of the Securities (on an as converted basis based on a valuation 
of Common Stock as determined in good faith b\ the Compan\¶s board of directors at the time of the Dissolution 
Event), (ii) all other holders of instruments sharing in the distribution of proceeds of the Company at the same priority 
as holders of Common Stock upon a Dissolution Event and (iii) all holders of Common Stock. 
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A ³Dissolution Event´ means (i) a voluntar\ termination of operations by the Company, (ii) a general assignment for 
the benefit of the Compan\¶s creditors or (iii) an\ other liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Compan\ 
(excluding a Liquidity Event), whether voluntary or involuntary. 
 
Termination 
 
The Securities terminate upon (without relieving the Company of any obligations arising from a prior breach of or 
non-compliance with the Securities) upon the earlier to occur of: (i) the issuance of shares in the CF Shadow Securities 
to the Investor pursuant to the conversion provisions of the Crowd SAFE agreement or (ii) the payment, or setting 
aside for payment, of amounts due to the Investor pursuant to a Liquidity Event or a Dissolution Event. 
 
Voting and Control  
 
Neither the Securities nor the securities issuable upon the conversion of the Securities have voting rights. 
 
The Company does not have any voting agreements in place.  
 
The Company has in place a Stockholders Agreement entered into on March 22, 2018 (the ³Stockholders Agreement´) 
by the holders of the Common Stock on the date thereof.  
 
The Stockholders Agreement imposes certain requirements and restrictions on the ability of a stockholder to sell or 
transfer the shares of the Compan\¶s capital stock held b\ such shareholder (the ³Shares´). Among other requirements, 
in most circumstances, the shareholder must first offer the Shares to the Company and then the other stockholders 
before the shareholder may transfer the Shares to a third party. Certificates representing the Shares will also bear a 
legend indicating that the Shares are subject to the restrictions on transfer imposed by the Stockholders Agreement. 
 
The Stockholders Agreement also imposes a requirement that upon the approval of a merger, recapitalization, 
consolidation, reorganization, combination or similar transaction (each an ³Approved Sale´) b\ the Compan\¶s board 
of directors and the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of common stock of the Company, all 
stockholders shall be required to vote for, consent to and raise no to such Approved Sale. Each stockholder shall be 
required to take all necessary actions in connection with the consummation of the Approved Sale. 
 
Anti-Dilution Rights  
 
The Securities do not have anti-dilution rights, which means that future equity issuances and other events will dilute 
the ownership percentage that the Investor may eventually have in the Company. 
 
Restrictions on Transfer  
 
Any Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF being offered may not be transferred by any Investor of such Securities 
during the one-year holding period beginning when the Securities were issued, unless such Securities are transferred: 
(1) to the Company; (2) to an accredited investor, as defined by Rule 501(d) of Regulation D promulgated under the 
Securities Act; (3) as part of an IPO; or (4) to a member of the family of the Investor or the equivalent, to a trust 
controlled by the Investor, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the Investor or the equivalent, 
or in connection with the death or divorce of the Investor or other similar circumstances. ³Member of the family´ as 
used herein means a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, 
mother/father/daughter/son/sister/brother-in-law, and includes adoptive relationships. Each Investor should be aware 
that although the Securities may legally be able to be transferred, there is no guarantee that another party will be 
willing to purchase them. 
 
In addition to the foregoing restrictions, prior to making any transfer of the Securities or any capital stock into which 
they are convertible, such transferring Investor must either make such transfer pursuant to an effective registration 
statement filed with the SEC or provide the Company with an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the 
Company stating that a registration statement is not necessary to effect such transfer. 
 
In addition, the Investor may not transfer the Securities or any capital stock into which they are convertible to any of 
the Compan\¶s competitors, as determined b\ the Compan\ in good faith. 
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Furthermore, upon the event of an IPO, the capital stock into which the Securities are converted will be subject to a 
lock-up period and may not be lent, offered, pledged, or sold for up to 180 days following such IPO. 
 
Other Material Terms  
 
x The Company does not have the right to repurchase the Securities. 
x The Securities do not have a stated return or liquidation preference. 
x The Company cannot determine if it currently has enough capital stock authorized to issue upon the conversion 

of the Securities, because the amount of capital stock to be issued is based on the occurrence of future events. 
 

COMMISSION AND FEES 
 

At the conclusion of the Offering, the issuer shall pay a fee of six percent (6%) of the amount raised in the Offering 
to the Intermediary. 
 
Stock, Warrants and Other Compensation 
 
The Intermediary will also receive compensation in the form of securities equal to two percent (2%) of the total number 
of the Securities sold in the offering 
 

TAX MATTERS 
 
EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT WITH THEIR OWN TAX AND ERISA 
ADVISOR AS TO THE PARTICULAR CONSEQUENCES TO THE INVESTOR OF THE PURCHASE, 
OWNERSHIP AND SALE OF THE INVESTOR¶S SECURITIES, AS WELL AS POSSIBLE CHANGES IN 
THE TAX LAWS.  

TO INSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS IMPOSED BY THE INTERNAL REVENUE 
SERVICE, WE INFORM YOU THAT ANY TAX STATEMENT IN THIS FORM C CONCERNING UNITED 
STATES FEDERAL TAXES IS NOT INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED, 
BY ANY TAXPAYER FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING ANY TAX-RELATED PENALTIES UNDER 
THE UNITED STATES INTERNAL REVENUE CODE. ANY TAX STATEMENT HEREIN CONCERNING 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL TAXES WAS WRITTEN IN CONNECTION WITH THE MARKETING OR 
PROMOTION OF THE TRANSACTIONS OR MATTERS TO WHICH THE STATEMENT RELATES. 
EACH TAXPAYER SHOULD SEEK ADVICE BASED ON THE TAXPAYER¶S PARTICULAR 
CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX ADVISOR. 

Potential Investors who are not United States residents are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the 
United States federal income tax implications of any investment in the Company, as well as the taxation of such 
investment by their country of residence. Furthermore, it should be anticipated that distributions from the 
Company to such foreign investors may be subject to United States withholding tax. 

EACH POTENTIAL INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISOR CONCERNING THE 
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF STATE TAXES. 

LEGAL MATTERS 
 
Any prospective Investor should consult with its own counsel and advisors in evaluating an investment in the Offering. 
 

DISCLAIMER OF TELEVISION, RADIO, PODCAST AND STREAMING PRESENTATION 
 

The Compan\¶s officers ma\ participate in the filming or recording of a various media and in the course of the filming, 
may present certain business information to the investor panel appearing on the show (the ³Presentation´). The 
Company will not pass upon the merits of, certify, approve, or otherwise authorize the statements made in the 
Presentation. The Presentation commentary being made should not be viewed as superior or a substitute for the 
disclosures made in this Form-C. Accordingly, the statements made in the Presentation, unless reiterated in the 
Offering materials provided herein, should not be applied to the Compan\¶s business and operations as of the date of 
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this Offering. Moreover, the Presentation may involve several statements constituting puffery, that is, exaggerations 
not to be taken literally or otherwise as indication of factual data or historical or future performance.  
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
The summaries of, and references to, various documents in this Form C do not purport to be complete and in each 
instance reference should be made to the copy of such document which is either an appendix to this Form C or which 
will be made available to Investors and their professional advisors upon request. 
 
Prior to making an investment decision regarding the Securities described herein, prospective Investors should 
carefully review and consider this entire Form C. The Company is prepared to furnish, upon request, a copy of the 
forms of an\ documents referenced in this Form C. The Compan\¶s representatives will be available to discuss with 
prospective Investors and their representatives and advisors, if any, any matter set forth in this Form C or any other 
matter relating to the Securities described in this Form C, so that prospective Investors and their representatives and 
advisors, if any, may have available to them all information, financial and otherwise, necessary to formulate a well-
informed investment decision. Additional information and materials concerning the Company will be made available 
to prospective Investors and their representatives and advisors, if any, at a mutually convenient location upon 
reasonable request. 
 
 



 

  

 

SIGNATURE 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation 
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the 
requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Form to be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized 
undersigned. 
 
 

 /s/Jurrien Swarts 
 (Signature) 
  
 Jurrien Swarts 
 (Name) 
  
 CEO & Director 
 (Title) 

 
 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation 
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the 
dates indicated.  

 
 

 /s/Jurrien Swarts 
 (Signature) 
  
 Jurrien Swarts 
 (Name) 
  
 CEO & Director 
 (Title) 
  
 October 5, 2020 
 (Date) 

 
 

 /s/Alex Abrams 
 (Signature) 
  
 Alex Abrams 
 (Name) 
  
 Director 
 (Title) 
  
 October 5, 2020 
 (Date) 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

  
 

/s/Vivienne Cudahy 
(Signature) 
 
Vivienne Cudahy 
(Name) 
 
Director 
(Title) 
 
October 5, 2020 
(Date) 

 
Instructions. 
 
1. The form shall be signed by the issuer, its principal executive officer or officers, its principal financial officer, 
its controller or principal accounting officer and at least a majority of the board of directors or persons performing 
similar functions. 
 
2. The name of each person signing the form shall be typed or printed beneath the signature. Intentional 
misstatements or omissions of facts constitute federal criminal violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001.
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 STOJO PRODUCTS INC 
BALANCE SHEET 

For the Period Ending December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2019 
(unaudited) 

ASSETS 2019 2018 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents   646,049   475,013 
Accounts receivable    929,862   172,390 
Inventory   516,114   161,557 

     Other Current Assets    18,747     -   
Total Current Assets         2,110,771   808,960 

Fixed Assets, net   656,772   103,497 

TOTAL ASSETS         2,767,544   912,457 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Liabilities:  

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable      2,015,663         638,509 
Other current liabilities         139,846          60,746 
Deferred Revenue         314,700      300 
Loan Payable   2,222         186,812 

Total Current Liabilities      2,472,431         886,366 
Long term liabilities: 

Convertible notes         406,037         381,086 
TOTAL LIABILITIES      2,878,468      1,267,453 

Stockholders’ Equity:  
Common Stock, $0.0001 par value, 10,000,000 shares 
authorized      435      361 

   4,870,720 and 4,129,570 shares issued and outstanding 
   as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively 
Additional Paid in Capital         624,621          24,695 
Additional Paid in Capital - Stock Options          44,778          44,778 
SAFEs          75,000  -   
Preferred Stock, $0.0001 par value, 2,500,000 shares authorized  -   -   
0 shares issued and outstanding 
   as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 

Retained earnings       (424,830)       (305,523) 
Net Income       (430,928)       (119,307) 

Total Stockholders’ Equity       (110,924)       (354,996) 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY      2,767,544         912,457 

dŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘
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STOJO PRODUCTS INC 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

For the Period January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2019 
(unaudited) 

2019 2018 
Revenues 6,575,838 2,798,738 

Less: Discounts and refunds -72,848 -53,692
Cost of revenues 4,711,030 2,068,670 

Gross Profit (Loss) 1,791,961 676,376 

Operating Expenses: 
General and administrative 1,582,422 550,939 
Sales and marketing 551,695 171,176 

Total Operating Expenses 2,134,117 722,116 

Operating Income (Loss) -342,156 -45,739

Interest Expense 53,223 49,245 
Amortization Expense 34,782 24,536 
Other Expenses 767 -213

Net Loss -430,928 -119,307

dŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘



FS - 7 

 Stojo Products, Inc 
Statem

ent O
f Stockholders' E

quity 
For the Period Ending D

ecem
ber 31, 2018 and D

ecem
ber 31, 2019 

(unaudited) 

C
om

m
on Stock 

(Shares) 
C

om
m

on Stock 
(V

alue) 
Stock O

ptions 
A

dditional Paid in 
C

apital 
R

etained 
E

arnings 
T

otal Stockholders’ 
E

quity 

B
alance as of January, 1, 2018 

  - 
-   

  44,778 
-

(305,523)
(260,745) 

Issuance of C
om

m
on Stock 

4,129,570 
361 

 24,695 
  25,056 

N
et Incom

e (Loss) 
(119,307) 

(119,307) 

B
alance as of D

ecem
ber, 31, 

2018 
4,129,570 

361 
  44,778 

 24,695 
(424,830) 

(354,996) 

Issuance of C
om

m
on Stock 

741,150 
   74 

   599,926 
600,000 

Issuance of SA
FE 

 75,000 
  75,000 

N
et Incom

e (Loss) 
(430,928) 

(430,928) 

B
alance as of D

ecem
ber, 31, 

2019 
4,870,720 

435 
  44,778 

   699,621 
(855,758) 

(110,924) 

dŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵ
ƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵ

ĞŶƚƐ͘



FS - 8 

STOJO PRODUCTS INC 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For Years Ending December 31, 2019 and 2018 
(Unaudited) 

2019 2018 

Operating Activities 
Net Income (Loss) (430,928) (119,307) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) 
      to net cash provided by operations: 
   Depreciation and amortization 34,782 24,536 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
   Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Receivable (757,472) (199,704) 
   Increase (Decrease) in Inventory (354,556) (133,208) 
   Increase (Decrease) in Other Current Assets (18,747) 1,083 
   Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 1,377,154 604,094 
   Increase (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 79,100 40,712 
   Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 314,400 300 

Net cash used in operating activities 243,733 218,506 

Investing Activities 
   Purchase of fixed assets (147,800) (37,550) 
   Purchase of trademark/IP (440,258) (62,554) 

Net change in cash from investing activities (588,058) (100,104) 

Financing Activities 
   Issuance of loan (184,590) 110,635 
   Issuance of membership units 600,000 25,056 
   Issuance of SAFEs 75,000 - 
   Issuance of Convertible Notes 24,950 183,645 

Net change in cash from financing activities 515,360 319,336 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 171,036 437,737 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 475,013 37,275 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 646,049 475,013 

dŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘
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STOJO PRODUCTS INC. 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018 
 
 

NOTE 1 – NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND CONSOLIDATION 
 
Stojo Products Inc. (which may be referred to as the “Company”, “we,” “us,” or “our”) was registered in Delaware 
on March 22, 2018. The Company is a direct-to-consumer, business-to-business, and wholesale global operation that 
produces houseware goods designed for optimal portability and sustainability. The Company’s headquarters are in 
Brooklyn, New York. The company began operations in 2018. The Company’s founders previously ran Urban 
Tumbler LLC, a New York Limited Liability Company formed on July 30, 2012, before creating a Delaware 
corporation. The financials do not contain consolidated results and activities.  
 
Since Inception, the Company has relied on contributions from owners, the issuance of convertible notes, and 
securing loans to fund its operations. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had negative working capital and will 
likely incur additional losses prior to generating positive working capital. These matters raise substantial concern 
about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern (see Note 10). During the next twelve months, the 
Company intends to fund its operations with funding from a crowdfunding campaign (see Note 11), and funds from 
revenue producing activities, if and when such can be realized. If the Company cannot secure additional short-term 
capital, it may cease operations. These financial statements and related notes thereto do not include any adjustments 
that might result from these uncertainties. 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America ("US GAAP"). The accompanying unaudited financial statements do not include all the 
information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all 
adjustments considered necessary for the fair presentation of the unaudited financial statements for the years 
presented have been included.  
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and footnotes thereto. Actual results could materially differ from these estimates. It is 
reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term. 
 
Significant estimates inherent in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements include valuation of 
provision for refunds and chargebacks, equity transactions and contingencies. 
 
Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The Company has a limited operating history. The Company's business and operations are sensitive to general 
business and economic conditions in the United States. A host of factors beyond the Company's control could cause 
fluctuations in these conditions. Adverse conditions may include recession, downturn or otherwise, local 
competition or changes in consumer taste. These adverse conditions could affect the Company's financial condition 
and the results of its operations. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America, which it 
believes to be credit worthy. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insures balances up to $250,000. At times, 
the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits. 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Company considers short-term, highly liquid investment with original maturities of three months or less at the 
time of purchase to be cash equivalents.  Cash consists of funds held in the Company’s checking account. As of 
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had $646,049 and $475,013 of cash on hand, respectively. 
 
Receivables and Credit Policy  
 
Trade receivables from wholesale customers are uncollateralized customer obligations due under normal trade 
terms, primarily requiring pre-payment before services are rendered. Trade receivables are stated at the amount 
billed to the customer. Payments of trade receivables are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the 
customer’s remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid invoice. The Company, by policy, 
routinely assesses the financial strength of its customer. As a result, the Company believes that its accounts 
receivable credit risk exposure is limited and it has not experienced significant write-downs in its accounts 
receivable balances. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had $929,862 and $172,390 in accounts receivable. 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Cost is determined by the first-in, first out (FIFO) 
method.  
 
Fixed Assets 
 
Property and equipment exist in the form of manufacturing tooling and are recorded at cost. Expenditures for 
renewals and improvements that significantly add to the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are 
capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. When equipment is retired or sold, the 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the resultant gain or loss is reflected 
in income. 
 
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method, based on useful lives of the assets which is three to five 
years. 
 
The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events and 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash 
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash 
flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying 
value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this assessment include 
current operating results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, and the effects of 
obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors. Based on this assessment there was no impairment 
for December 31, 2019. 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or be 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price) 
and such principles also establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value using 
the following definitions (from highest to lowest priority): 

x Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for 
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.  

x Level 2 – Observable inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in 
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or 
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other 
means. 
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x Level 3 – Prices or valuation techniques requiring inputs that are both significant to the fair value 
measurement and unobservable. 

 
Income Taxes 
 
Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reporting in the financial statements and consist of taxes 
currently due plus deferred taxes related primarily to differences between the basis of receivables, inventory, 
property and equipment, intangible assets, and accrued expenses for financial and income tax reporting. The 
deferred tax assets and liabilities represent the future tax return consequences of those differences, which will either 
be taxable or deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a 
valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the 
deferred tax assets will not be realized.  
 
There is no income tax provision for the Company for the period from Inception through December 31, 2019 as the 
Company had no taxable income.  
 
The Company evaluates its tax positions that have been taken or are expected to be taken on income tax returns to 
determine if an accrual is necessary for uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 2019, the unrecognized tax 
benefits accrual was zero. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Codification 606, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers ("ASC 606"). Revenue is recognized when performance obligations under the terms of the contracts 
with our customers are satisfied. Prior to the adoption of ASC 606, we recognized revenue when persuasive 
evidence of an arrangement existed, delivery of products had occurred, the sales price was fixed or determinable and 
collectability was reasonably assured. The Company generates revenues by selling sustainable home goods. The 
Company’s payments are generally collected upfront, but some are on a Net 30 or Net 45 term. The Company has 
deferred revenue totaling $314,700 and $300 on December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, for orders that have 
been paid but the performance obligations have not been met.  
 
Organizational Costs  
 
In accordance with FASB ASC 720, organizational costs, including accounting fees, legal fee, and costs of 
incorporation, are expensed as incurred. 
 
Advertising 
 
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Such costs approximated $107,956 and $70,980, 
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
 
Deferred Cash Compensation 
 
Deferred cash compensation expense reflects the fair value of equity-based awards that have vested at the end of the 
reporting period and is remeasured at the end of every reporting period.  
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
In February 2019, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, that requires organizations that lease assets, referred to 
as "lessees", to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created by those 
leases with lease terms of more than 12 months. ASU 2019-02 will also require disclosures to help investors and 
other financial statement users better understand the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from 
leases and will include qualitative and quantitative requirements. The new standard for nonpublic entities will be 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within those fiscal years, and early 
application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the financial 
statements and related disclosures. 
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In June 2018, FASB amended ASU No. 2018-07, Compensation – Stock Compensation, to expand the scope of 
Topic 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation, to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods 
and services from nonemployees.  The new standard for nonpublic entities will be effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and 
early application is permitted.  We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on the 
financial statements and related disclosures. 
 
In August 2018, amendments to existing accounting guidance were issued through Accounting Standards Update 
2018-15 to clarify the accounting for implementation costs for cloud computing arrangements.  The amendments 
specify that existing guidance for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use 
software also applies to implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract. The 
guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2021, and early application is permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that 
the updated standard will have on the financial statements and related disclosures. 
  
The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date, 
including those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) 
provide supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to 
have a significant impact our financial statements. 
 
NOTE 3 – INVENTORIES 
 
At December 31, 2019 and 2018 inventories consist of the following:  
 

 2019 2018 
Inventory Asset               2,991                3,031  
Finished Goods           497,068            149,110  
Inventory Parts               7,354                1,716  
Merchandising Inventory               8,700                7,700  
Total Inventory  $       516,114   $       161,557  

  
 
NOTE 4 – FIXED ASSETS 
 
Fixed assets at December 31, 2019 and 2018 consists of the following: 
 

 2019 2018 
Website - Capitalized Development/IP           547,702            107,444  
Tooling           226,716              78,916  

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization         (117,646)           (82,864) 
Total  $       656,772   $       103,497  

   
 
Depreciation expenses totaled $34,782 and $24,536 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively 
(see Note 2 – Fixed Assets). 
 
NOTE 5 – LOANS 
 
In 2018 the Company issued $366,373 of unsecured convertible notes with maturity dates of July 1, 2021, with notes 
totaling $165,000 accruing at 5% interest per annum and notes totaling $201,373 accruing 8% per annum. If the 
Company does not pay the notes before the maturity date all principal and accrued interest converts into common 
stock equity of the Company at a price per share equal to the quotient of the lesser of (i) fair market value or (ii) 
$4,000,000, divided by the total number of Company Stock outstanding immediately prior. Conversion shall at an 
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equity financing with gross proceeds of at least $750,000. The balance of these notes as of December 31, 2019 is 
$406,037 with a total of $40,896 of total accrued interest. 
 
NOTE 6 – INCOME TAXES 
 
The Company has filed its income tax return for the period ended December 31, 2019, which will remain subject to 
examination by the Internal Revenue Service under the statute of limitations for a period of three years from the date 
it is filed. The Company is taxed as a C Corporation. 
 
NOTE 7 – EQUITY 
 
Common Stock 
 
The Company authorized 10,000,000 shares of common stock at $0.0001 par value and 2,500,000 shares of 
preferred stock at $0.0001 par value.  
 
In 2019, the Company issued $625,000 in Common Shares through an equity financing. Of that amount, $500,000 in 
shares were priced at $0.79005 per share. The remaining $125,000 of shares were priced at $0.92336 per share. As 
of December 31, 2019, the Company had 4,870,720 shares of common stock outstanding and 0 shares of preferred 
stock.  
 
Additional Paid-In Capital – SAFEs 
 
In 2019, the Company issued SAFEs totaling $75,000. The SAFEs are automatically convertible into a series of 
preferred stock on the completion of a bona fide transaction of not less than $250,000 with the principal purpose of 
raising capital where the Company issues and sells preferred stock at a fixed pre-money valuation (“Qualified 
Financing”).  
 
NOTE 8 – EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION 
 
In January 2019, the Company adopted a 2019 Stock Option and Grant Plan (“2019 Plan”) which permits the grant 
or option of shares to its employees for up to 750,003 shares of common stock.  
 
The Company believes that such awards will help the Company attract, retain and motivate its management and 
other persons, including officers, directors, key employees and consultants, will encourage and reward such persons’ 
contributions to the performance of the Company and will align their interests with the interests of the Company’s 
stockholders. Stock awards are generally granted or optioned at a price not less than the market price of the 
Company’s stock at the date of grant or option date. Stock awards generally vest over four years. 
 
NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Company is not currently involved with and does not know of any pending or threatening litigation against the 
Company as of December 31, 2019 (see Note 13 – Subsequent Events). 
 
NOTE 10 – GOING CONCERN 
 
These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.  The Company began operation in 2018 and 
incurred a loss since inception. The Company’s ability to continue is dependent upon management’s plan to raise 
additional funds and achieve profitable operations.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments that 
might be necessary if the Company is not able to continue as a going concern.  
 
NOTE 11 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Litigation  
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In 2020, a civil action was filed against the Company in the United States District Court for the Southern District of 
New York. The lawsuit alleges that the Stojo website violates the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) because it 
is not accessible to the blind and visually impaired. The Lawsuit is in the early stages but we anticipate this to be 
settled in our favor. 

PPP Loan 

In April 2020 the Company entered into a Paycheck Protection Program Loan (“PPP Loan”) through the Small 
Business Administration through JP Morgan Chase for a total of $157,530. The loan matures on April 2022 and has 
an interest rate of 0.98%. The Company can apply for forgiveness of the amount due for costs incurred for payroll 
costs, payment on a covered rent obligation, and any covered utility payment. Payments of the Loan begin October 
2020. 

EIDL Loan 

In May 2020, the Company received a loan for $150,000 under the Advance on an Economic Injury Disaster Loan 
(“EIDL”), which will be forgiven as debt under the terms of the CARES Act. 

COVID-19 

In January 2020, the World Health Organization has declared the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a 
“Public Health Emergency of International Concern,” which continues to spread throughout the world and has 
adversely impacted global commercial activity and contributed to significant declines and volatility in financial 
markets. The coronavirus outbreak and government responses are creating disruption in global supply chains and 
adversely impacting many industries. The outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic 
and market conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown. The rapid development and fluidity of this 
situation precludes any prediction as to the ultimate material adverse impact of the coronavirus outbreak. 
Nevertheless, the outbreak presents uncertainty and risk with respect to the Company, its performance, and its 
financial results. 

Crowdfunded Offering 

The Company is offering (the “Crowdfunded Offering”) up to $1,070,000 in Simple Agreements for Future Equity 
(SAFEs). The Company is attempting to raise a minimum amount of $25,000 in this offering and up to $1,070,000 
maximum. The Company must receive commitments from investors totaling the minimum amount by the offering 
deadline listed in the Form C, as amended in order to receive any funds.   

The Crowdfunded Offering is being made through OpenDeal Portal LLC (the “Intermediary” aka “Republic” or 
“Republic.co”). The Intermediary will be entitled to receive a 6% commission fee and 2% of the securities issued in 
this offering. 

Management’s Evaluation 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 22, 2020, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. Based on this evaluation, no additional material events were identified which require 
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 
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'TKP�$WVTKEC )TCRJKE�&GUKIPGT

/GIJCP�*QN\JCWGT $TCPF���)TQYVJ�/CTMGVKPI�
(TCEVKQPCN�

4KEM�5CFQHUM[ 5CNGU�
(TCEVKQPCN�



��������� 5HSXEOLF�³�ZKHUH�DQ\RQH�FDQ�LQYHVW�LQ�VWDUWXSV

KWWSV���UHSXEOLF�FR�VWRMR�H[KLELW �����

2GTMU

���� #�UJQWVQWV�QP�QWT�YGDUKVG

���� ��(TGG�5VQLQ�%WR�QT�$QVVNG�#�UJQWVQWV�QP�QWT�YGDUKVG

������ ��(TGG�5VQLQ�%WRU�QT�$QVVNGU�#�UJQWVQWV�QP�QWT�YGDUKVG

������ ��(TGG�5VQLQ�$QYN���(TGG�5VQLQ�%WRU�QT�$QVVNGU�#�UJQWVQWV�QP�QWT�YGDUKVG

������� *CXG�C�����EQPXGTUCVKQP�YKVJ�VJG�%'1���(TGG�5VQLQ�$QYN���(TGG�5VQLQ�%WRU�QT�$QVVNGU�#�UJQWVQWV�QP

QWT�YGDUKVG

������� +PXKVCVKQP�VQ�CVVGPF�QWT�#PPWCN�+PXGUVQT�7RFCVG�ECNN�*CXG�C�����EQPXGTUCVKQP�YKVJ�VJG�%'1���(TGG

5VQLQ�$QYN���(TGG�5VQLQ�%WRU�QT�$QVVNGU�#�UJQWVQWV�QP�QWT�YGDUKVG



��������� 5HSXEOLF�³�ZKHUH�DQ\RQH�FDQ�LQYHVW�LQ�VWDUWXSV

KWWSV���UHSXEOLF�FR�VWRMR�H[KLELW �����

(#3

9JCV�CTG
5VQLQU�OCFG
QH!

5VQLQU�CTG�OCFG�QH�.()$�EGTVKHKGF�RNCVKPWO�HQQF�ITCFG�UKNKEQPG���.()$�EGTVKHKGF

RQN[RTQR[NGPG�
G�I�����TGE[ENCDNG�RNCUVKE���9G�DGNKGXG�QWT�EWUVQOGTU�FGUGTXG�VJG�DGUV

SWCNKV[�OCVGTKCNU��CPF�VTCPURCTGPE[�KPVQ�QWT�RTQFWEVKQP�UVCPFCTFU�¾

0QVG��.()$�KU�VJG�)GTOCP�HQQF�UCHGV[�UVCPFCTF��YJKEJ�JCU�UCHGT�CPF�JKIJGT�UVCPFCTFU�VJCP

VJG�75(&#�UVCPFCTFU��1WT�EWRU�CTG�HTGG�QH�$2#U��$25U��RJVJCNCVGU��NGCF��CPF�CFJGUKXGU�

9JGTG�CTG
5VQLQU
OCPWHCEVWTGF!

#NN�5VQLQU�CTG�OCPWHCEVWTGF�TGURQPUKDN[�KP�%JKPC��1WT�OCPWHCEVWTKPI�QRGTCVKQPU�OGGV

CEEGRVCDNG�UVCPFCTFU�HQT�SWCNKV[��UCHGV[��HCKT�NCDQT��GVJKECN�DWUKPGUU�RTCEVKEGU��CPF

GPXKTQPOGPVCN�TGURQPUKDKNKV[��+P�CFFKVKQP��YG»TG�RTQWF�VQ�JQNF�UVTQPI�TGNCVKQPUJKRU�YKVJ�QWT

RCTVPGTU�YJKEJ�JCXG�RCUUGF�UVTKEV�SWCNKV[�CUUWTCPEG�UVCPFCTF�WRJGNF�D[�5VCTDWEMU��1WT

OCPWHCEVWTKPI�CPF�UQWTEKPI�RCTVPGTU�OCKPVCKP�EGTVKHKECVKQPU�HQT�3WCNKV[�/CPCIGOGPV

5[UVGO�
+51�������CPF�'PXKTQPOGPVCN�/CPCIGOGPV�5[UVGO�
+51��������UVCPFCTFU�

*QY�FQGU�KV
YQTM!

6Q�GZRCPF�[QWT�5VQLQ��QRGP�VJG�VCD��TGOQXG�VJG�JGCV�UNGGXG��ITCD�VJG�DQVVQO�QH�VJG�EWR�VQ

GZRCPF��RNCEG�VJG�JGCV�UNGGXG�QXGT�VJG�EWR��HKNN�YKVJ�[QWT�HCXQTKVG�FTKPM��UETGY�QP�[QWT�NKF�

CPF�GPLQ[�

6Q�EQNNCRUG�[QWT�5VQLQ��QRGP�VJG�VCD��TGOQXG�VJG�JGCV�UNGGXG��RWUJ�EWR�FQYP�VQ�EQNNCRUG�

VWEM�KP�VJG�JGCV�UNGGXG��ENQUG�[QWT�VCD��CPF�UVQY�[QWT�EWR�KP�[QWT�RQEMGV��DCI��QT�ECDKPGV�

/QTG�QH�C�XKUWCN�RGTUQP!�5GG�QWT�RTQFWEVU�KP�CEVKQP�DGNQY�

���*QY�VQ�5VQLQ�%WR

���*QY�VQ�5VQLQ�$QVVNG

9JCV»U�VJG
NKHGURCP�QH�C
5VQLQ!

1WT�EWRU�CTG�FGUKIPGF�HQT�FCKN[�WUG�QXGT�OCP[�[GCTU��6Q�MGGR�[QWT�5VQLQ�KP�VKR�VQR�EQPFKVKQP

CPF�RTQNQPI�KVU�NKHGURCP��YG�TGEQOOGPF�TKPUKPI�[QWT�EWR�CHVGT�GCEJ�WUG�
DGHQTG�EQNNCRUKPI�

CPF�YCUJKPI�KV�TGIWNCTN[�

9JCV�ECP�+�RWV
KP�O[�5VQLQ
EWR!

$CUKECNN[��CP[VJKPI�VJCV�HKVU��5QOG�QH�QWT�HCXQTKVG�DGXGTCIGU�CTG�EQHHGG��UOQQVJKGU��CPF�VGC�

DWV�QWT�EWRU�JCXG�CNUQ�DGGP�WUGF�HQT�HTWKV��UQWR��EJKRU��CPF�OQTG��)Q�PWVU�

(WP�HCEV��[QW�ECP�HKV���JCTF�DQKNGF�GIIU�KP�VJG���Q\�5VQLQ��
9G�EJGEMGF��;QW»TG�YGNEQOG��

&QGU�5VQLQ
JCXG�CP[
RCVGPVU�QT
VTCFGOCTMU!

6JG�EQORCP[�JCU�QPG�VTCFGOCTMU�KP�VJG�75��'7��CPF�#UKC��9G�JCXG�C�FGUKIP�CPF�WVKNKV[

RCVGPVU�KP�VJG�75�CPF�C�WVKNKV[�RCVGPV�KP�%JKPC�HQT�VJG�EQNNCRUKDNG�EWR��9G�JCXG�CPQVJGT�VYQ

RCVGPVU�RGPFKPI�HQT�VJG�YCVGT�DQVVNG�CPF�CTG�QDVCKPKPI�RTQVGEVKQP�HQT�PGY�RTQFWEVU�[GV�VQ

NCWPEJ�



 
 

  
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Form of Security 
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�

7+,6�,167580(17�+$6�%((1�,668('�38568$17�72�6(&7,21���$�����2)�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�
$&7� 2)� ������ $6� $0(1'('� �7+(� ³6(&85,7,(6� $&7´��� $1'� 1(,7+(5� ,7� 125� $1<�
6(&85,7,(6� ,668$%/(� 38568$17� +(5(72� +$9(� %((1� 5(*,67(5('� 81'(5� 7+(�
6(&85,7,(6�$&7�25�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�/$:6�2)�$1<�67$7(���7+(6(�6(&85,7,(6�0$<�127�
%(�2))(5('��62/'�25�27+(5:,6(�75$16)(55('��3/('*('�25�+<327+(&$7('�(;&(37�
$6�3(50,77('�%<�58/(�����2)�5(*8/$7,21�&52:')81',1*�81'(5�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�
$&7� $1'� $33/,&$%/(� 67$7(� 6(&85,7,(6� /$:6� 25� 38568$17� 72� $1� ())(&7,9(�
5(*,675$7,21�67$7(0(17�25�(;(037,21�7+(5()520����
�
,)� 7+(� ,19(6725� /,9(6� 2876,'(� 7+(� 81,7('� 67$7(6�� ,7� ,6� 7+(� ,19(6725¶6�
5(63216,%,/,7<�72�)8//<�2%6(59(�7+(�/$:6�2)�$1<�5(/(9$17�7(55,725<�
25� -85,6',&7,21� 2876,'(� 7+(� 81,7('� 67$7(6� ,1� &211(&7,21� :,7+� $1<�
385&+$6(� 2)� 7+(� 6(&85,7,(6�� ,1&/8',1*� 2%7$,1,1*� 5(48,5('�
*29(510(17$/�25�27+(5�&216(176�25�2%6(59,1*�$1<�27+(5�5(48,5('�
/(*$/�25�27+(5�)250$/,7,(6��7+(�&203$1<�5(6(59(6�7+(�5,*+7�72�'(1<�
7+(�385&+$6(�2)�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�%<�$1<�)25(,*1�385&+$6(5��
�

6WRMR�3URGXFWV��,QF��
�

&URZG�6$)(�
�&URZGIXQGLQJ�6LPSOH�$JUHHPHQW�IRU�)XWXUH�(TXLW\��

�
6HULHV�������

�
7+,6�&(57,),(6�7+$7�LQ�H[FKDQJH�IRU�WKH�SD\PHQW�E\�>,QYHVWRU�1DPH@��WKH�³,QYHVWRU´��DQG�

WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DOO�RWKHU�6HULHV������&URZG�6$)(�KROGHUV��³,QYHVWRUV´��RI��>________@� �WKH�³3XUFKDVH�
$PRXQW´�� RQ� RU� DERXW� >'DWH� RI� &URZG� 6$)(@�� 6WRMR� 3URGXFWV�� ,QF��� D� 'HODZDUH� FRUSRUDWLRQ� �WKH�
³&RPSDQ\´��� KHUHE\� LVVXHV� WR� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� WKH� ULJKW� WR� FHUWDLQ� VKDUHV�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�
�GHILQHG�EHORZ���VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�WHUPV�VHW�IRUWK�EHORZ���

�
7KH�³9DOXDWLRQ�&DS´�LV��������������

� �
6HH�6HFWLRQ���IRU�FHUWDLQ�DGGLWLRQDO�GHILQHG�WHUPV��
�

��� Events 
�
�D�� (TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ����
�
� �L�� ,I�DQ�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�RFFXUV�EHIRUH�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�WHUPLQDWHV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�

6HFWLRQV� ��E���G�� �³)LUVW� (TXLW\� )LQDQFLQJ´��� WKH� &RPSDQ\� VKDOO� SURPSWO\� QRWLI\� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� RI� WKH�
FORVLQJ�RI�WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�DQG�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�GLVFUHWLRQDU\�GHFLVLRQ�WR�HLWKHU�����FRQWLQXH�WKH�
WHUP�RI�WKLV�&URZG�6$)(�ZLWKRXW�FRQYHUWLQJ�WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�WR�&DSLWDO�6WRFN��RU�����LVVXH�WR�WKH�
,QYHVWRU�D�QXPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�RI� WKH�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�RI� WKH�&DSLWDO�6WRFN��ZKHWKHU�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN�RU�
DQRWKHU�FODVV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��VROG�LQ�WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ���7KH�QXPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&)�
6KDGRZ�6HULHV�RI�VXFK�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�VKDOO�HTXDO�WKH�TXRWLHQW�REWDLQHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ��[��WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�
E\��\��WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�3ULFH��GHILQHG�EHORZ����

�
� �LL�� ,I� WKH�&RPSDQ\� HOHFWV� WR� FRQWLQXH� WKH� WHUP�RI� WKLV�&URZG�6$)(�SDVW� WKH�)LUVW�

(TXLW\� )LQDQFLQJ� DQG� DQRWKHU� (TXLW\� )LQDQFLQJ� RFFXUV� EHIRUH� WKH� WHUPLQDWLRQ� RI� WKLV� &URZG� 6$)(� LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6HFWLRQV���E���G���HDFK��D�³6XEVHTXHQW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ´���WKH�&RPSDQ\�VKDOO�SURPSWO\�



�

������
�

QRWLI\�WKH�,QYHVWRU�RI�WKH�FORVLQJ�RI�WKH�6XEVHTXHQW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�DQG�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�GLVFUHWLRQDU\�
GHFLVLRQ�WR�HLWKHU�����FRQWLQXH�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKLV�&URZG�6$)(�ZLWKRXW�FRQYHUWLQJ�WKH�,QYHVWRU¶V�3XUFKDVH�
$PRXQW�WR�&DSLWDO�6WRFN��RU�����LVVXH�WR�WKH�,QYHVWRU�D�QXPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�RI�WKH�
&DSLWDO�6WRFN��ZKHWKHU�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN�RU�DQRWKHU�FODVV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��VROG�LQ�WKH�6XEVHTXHQW�
(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ���7KH�QXPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�RI�VXFK�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�VKDOO�HTXDO�WR�WKH�
TXRWLHQW�REWDLQHG�E\�GLYLGLQJ��[��WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�E\��\��WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�3ULFH���

�
�E�� /LTXLGLW\�(YHQW��
�
� �L�� ,I�WKHUH�LV�D�/LTXLGLW\�(YHQW�EHIRUH�WKH�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�EHIRUH�

DQ\�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ��WKH�,QYHVWRU�ZLOO��DW�LWV�RSWLRQ��HLWKHU��L��UHFHLYH�D�FDVK�SD\PHQW�HTXDO�WR�WKH�3XUFKDVH�
$PRXQW��VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�SDUDJUDSK��RU��LL��DXWRPDWLFDOO\�UHFHLYH�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\�D�QXPEHU�RI�
VKDUHV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�HTXDO�WR�WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�GLYLGHG�E\�WKH�/LTXLGLW\�3ULFH��LI�WKH�,QYHVWRU�IDLOV�
WR�VHOHFW�WKH�FDVK�RSWLRQ���,Q�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKLV�6HFWLRQ���E��L���WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�ZLOO�EH�GXH�DQG�
SD\DEOH�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�WKH�,QYHVWRU�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR��RU�FRQFXUUHQW�ZLWK��WKH�FRQVXPPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
/LTXLGLW\�(YHQW�� � ,I� WKHUH�DUH�QRW�HQRXJK�IXQGV� WR�SD\� WKH� ,QYHVWRU�DQG�KROGHUV�RI�RWKHU�&URZG�6$)(V�
�FROOHFWLYHO\�� WKH� ³&DVK�2XW� ,QYHVWRUV´�� LQ� IXOO�� WKHQ� DOO� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� DYDLODEOH� IXQGV� ZLOO� EH�
GLVWULEXWHG�ZLWK�HTXDO�SULRULW\�DQG�SUR�UDWD�DPRQJ�WKH�&DVK�2XW�,QYHVWRUV�LQ�SURSRUWLRQ�WR�WKHLU�3XUFKDVH�
$PRXQWV��

�
� �LL�� ,I�WKHUH�LV�D�/LTXLGLW\�(YHQW�DIWHU�RQH�RU�PRUH�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJV�KDYH�RFFXUUHG�EXW�

EHIRUH�WKH�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��WKH�,QYHVWRU�ZLOO��DW�LWV�RSWLRQ��HLWKHU��L��UHFHLYH�D�FDVK�SD\PHQW�
HTXDO�WR�WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW��DV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�SDUDJUDSK��RU��LL��DXWRPDWLFDOO\�UHFHLYH�IURP�
WKH�&RPSDQ\� D� QXPEHU� RI� VKDUHV� RI� WKH�PRVW� UHFHQW� LVVXHG�&DSLWDO� 6WRFN� �ZKHWKHU� 3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN� RU�
DQRWKHU�FODVV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��HTXDO�WR�WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�GLYLGHG�E\�WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�
3ULFH��LI�WKH�,QYHVWRU�IDLOV�WR�VHOHFW�WKH�FDVK�RSWLRQ��6KDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�JUDQWHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�WKHUHZLWK�
VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�VDPH�OLTXLGDWLRQ�ULJKWV�DQG�SUHIHUHQFHV�DV�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�LVVXHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�
ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�PRVW�UHFHQW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ��

�
,I�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�GHWHUPLQHV�LQ�JRRG�IDLWK�WKDW�GHOLYHU\�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�WR�WKH�

,QYHVWRU�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ���E��L�����RU�6HFWLRQ���E��LL�����ZRXOG�YLRODWH�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ��UXOH�RU�UHJXODWLRQ��
WKHQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VKDOO�GHOLYHU�WR�,QYHVWRU�LQ�OLHX�WKHUHRI��D�FDVK�SD\PHQW�HTXDO�WR�WKH�IDLU�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�
VXFK�&DSLWDO�6WRFN��DV�GHWHUPLQHG�LQ�JRRG�IDLWK�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV��

�
�F�� 'LVVROXWLRQ�(YHQW�� � ,I� WKHUH� LV�D�'LVVROXWLRQ�(YHQW�EHIRUH� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� WHUPLQDWHV� LQ�

DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6HFWLRQV���D��RU���E���VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�SUHIHUHQFHV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�DQ\�VHULHV�RI�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN��
WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�GLVWULEXWH�LWV�HQWLUH�DVVHWV�OHJDOO\�DYDLODEOH�IRU�GLVWULEXWLRQ�ZLWK�HTXDO�SULRULW\�DPRQJ�WKH�
�L��,QYHVWRUV��RQ�DQ�DV�FRQYHUWHG�EDVLV�EDVHG�RQ�D�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�LQ�JRRG�IDLWK�
E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�'LVVROXWLRQ�(YHQW����LL��DOO�RWKHU�KROGHUV�RI�LQVWUXPHQWV�
VKDULQJ�LQ�WKH�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DW�WKH�VDPH�SULRULW\�DV�KROGHUV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�XSRQ�D�'LVVROXWLRQ�
(YHQW�DQG��LLL��DQG�DOO�KROGHUV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�����

�
�G�� 7HUPLQDWLRQ�� � 7KLV� LQVWUXPHQW� ZLOO� WHUPLQDWH� �ZLWKRXW� UHOLHYLQJ� WKH� &RPSDQ\� RU� WKH�

,QYHVWRU�RI�DQ\�REOLJDWLRQV�DULVLQJ�IURP�D�SULRU�EUHDFK�RI�RU�QRQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��XSRQ�WKH�
HDUOLHU� WR�RFFXU���L�� WKH�LVVXDQFH�RI�VKDUHV��ZKHWKHU�LQ�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�RU� LQ�WKH�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�� WR�WKH�
,QYHVWRU� SXUVXDQW� WR� 6HFWLRQ���D�� RU� 6HFWLRQ� ��E��� RU� �LL�� WKH� SD\PHQW�� RU� VHWWLQJ� DVLGH� IRU� SD\PHQW�� RI�
DPRXQWV�GXH�WR�WKH�,QYHVWRU�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQV���E��RU���F���

�
��� Definitions 
 

³&DSLWDO�6WRFN´�PHDQV�WKH�FDSLWDO�VWRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LQFOXGLQJ��ZLWKRXW�OLPLWDWLRQ��&RPPRQ�



�

������
�

6WRFN�DQG�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN��
�
³&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV´�VKDOO�PHDQ�D�VHULHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�WKDW� LV�LGHQWLFDO� LQ�DOO�UHVSHFWV� WR�WKH�

VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN��ZKHWKHU�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN�RU�DQRWKHU�FODVV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LVVXHG�LQ�WKH�
UHOHYDQW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ��H�J.��LI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VHOOV�6HULHV�$�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN�LQ�DQ�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ��WKH�
6KDGRZ�6HULHV�ZRXOG�EH�6HULHV�$�&)�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN���H[FHSW�WKDW����

�
�L�� &)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�VKDUHKROGHUV�VKDOO�KDYH�QR�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�DQG�VKDOO�QRW�EH�HQWLWOHG�
WR�YRWH�RQ�DQ\�PDWWHU�WKDW�LV�VXEPLWWHG�WR�D�YRWH�RU�IRU�WKH�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�VWRFNKROGHUV�RI�
WKH�&RPSDQ\���
�

� �LL�� (DFK�RI�WKH�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�VKDUHKROGHUV�VKDOO�HQWHU�LQWR�D�SUR[\�DJUHHPHQW��LQ�
WKH�IRUP�RI�([KLELW�$�DWWDFKHG�KHUHWR��DSSRLQWLQJ�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�DV�LWV�LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\�
ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�DQ\�PDWWHU�WR�ZKLFK�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�VKDUHKROGHUV�DUH�HQWLWOHG�WR�YRWH�E\�
ODZ���(QWHULQJ�LQWR�VXFK�SUR[\�DJUHHPHQW�LV�D�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�UHFHLYLQJ�&)�6KDGRZ�6KDUHV�
DQG� VXFK� DJUHHPHQW� SURYLGHV� WKDW� WKH� ,QWHUPHGLDU\� ZLOO� YRWH� ZLWK� WKH� PDMRULW\� RI� WKH�
KROGHUV�RI�WKH�UHOHYDQW�FODVV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�RQ�DQ\�PDWWHUV�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�
SUR[\�DJUHHPHQW�DSSOLHV��DQG��

�
� �LLL�� &)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�VKDUHKROGHUV�KDYH�QR�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RU�LQVSHFWLRQ�ULJKWV��H[FHSW�

ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�VXFK�ULJKWV�GHHPHG�QRW�ZDLYDEOH�E\�ODZV��
�
³&KDQJH�RI�&RQWURO´�PHDQV��L��D�WUDQVDFWLRQ�RU�VHULHV�RI�UHODWHG�WUDQVDFWLRQV�LQ�ZKLFK�DQ\�³SHUVRQ´�

RU�³JURXS´��ZLWKLQ�WKH�PHDQLQJ�RI�6HFWLRQV����G��DQG����G��RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�([FKDQJH�$FW�RI�������DV�
DPHQGHG���EHFRPHV�WKH�³EHQHILFLDO�RZQHU´��DV�GHILQHG�LQ�5XOH���G���XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�([FKDQJH�$FW�RI�
������DV�DPHQGHG���GLUHFWO\�RU� LQGLUHFWO\��RI�PRUH� WKDQ�����RI� WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YRWLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�RI� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�KDYLQJ�WKH�ULJKW�WR�YRWH�IRU�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�RI�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV���LL��DQ\�
UHRUJDQL]DWLRQ�� PHUJHU� RU� FRQVROLGDWLRQ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� RWKHU� WKDQ� D� WUDQVDFWLRQ� RU� VHULHV� RI� UHODWHG�
WUDQVDFWLRQV�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�KROGHUV�RI�WKH�YRWLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RXWVWDQGLQJ�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR�
VXFK� WUDQVDFWLRQ� RU� VHULHV� RI� UHODWHG� WUDQVDFWLRQV� UHWDLQ�� LPPHGLDWHO\� DIWHU� VXFK� WUDQVDFWLRQ� RU� VHULHV� RI�
UHODWHG� WUDQVDFWLRQV�� DW� OHDVW� D�PDMRULW\�RI� WKH� WRWDO�YRWLQJ�SRZHU� UHSUHVHQWHG�E\� WKH�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YRWLQJ�
VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�VXFK�RWKHU�VXUYLYLQJ�RU�UHVXOWLQJ�HQWLW\�RU��LLL��D�VDOH��OHDVH�RU�RWKHU�GLVSRVLWLRQ�
RI�DOO�RU�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�DOO�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\���� �

�
³&RPPRQ�6WRFN´�PHDQV�WKH�FRPPRQ�VWRFN��SDU�YDOXH���������SHU�VKDUH��RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
�³'LVVROXWLRQ�(YHQW´�PHDQV��L��D�YROXQWDU\�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�RSHUDWLRQV���LL��D�JHQHUDO�DVVLJQPHQW�IRU�

WKH�EHQHILW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FUHGLWRUV���LLL��WKH�FRPPHQFHPHQW�RI�D�FDVH��ZKHWKHU�YROXQWDU\�RU�LQYROXQWDU\��
VHHNLQJ� UHOLHI� XQGHU� 7LWOH� ��� RI� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� &RGH� �WKH� ³%DQNUXSWF\� &RGH´��� RU� �LY�� DQ\� RWKHU�
OLTXLGDWLRQ��GLVVROXWLRQ�RU�ZLQGLQJ�XS�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��H[FOXGLQJ�D�/LTXLGLW\�(YHQW���ZKHWKHU�YROXQWDU\�RU�
LQYROXQWDU\��

�
³(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ´�VKDOO�PHDQ�WKH�QH[W�VDOH��RU�VHULHV�RI�UHODWHG�VDOHV��E\� WKH�&RPSDQ\�RI� LWV�

(TXLW\�6HFXULWLHV�WR�RQH�RU�PRUH�WKLUG�SDUWLHV�IROORZLQJ�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�IURP�ZKLFK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
UHFHLYHV�JURVV�SURFHHGV�RI�QRW�OHVV�WKDQ������������FDVK�RU�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQW��H[FOXGLQJ�WKH�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�
DQ\� LQVWUXPHQWV� FRQYHUWLEOH� LQWR� RU� H[HUFLVDEOH� RU� H[FKDQJHDEOH� IRU� &DSLWDO� 6WRFN�� VXFK� DV� 6$)(V� RU�
FRQYHUWLEOH�SURPLVVRU\�QRWHV��ZLWK�WKH�SULQFLSDO�SXUSRVH�RI�UDLVLQJ�FDSLWDO��

�
³(TXLW\�6HFXULWLHV´�VKDOO�PHDQ�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�RU�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN�RU�DQ\�VHFXULWLHV�FRQYHUWLEOH�

LQWR�� H[FKDQJHDEOH� IRU� RU� FRQIHUULQJ� WKH� ULJKW� WR� SXUFKDVH� �ZLWK� RU� ZLWKRXW� DGGLWLRQDO� FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��
&RPPRQ�6WRFN�RU�3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN��H[FHSW�LQ�HDFK�FDVH���L��DQ\�VHFXULW\�JUDQWHG��LVVXHG�DQG�RU�VROG�E\�WKH�



�

������
�

&RPSDQ\�WR�DQ\�GLUHFWRU��RIILFHU��HPSOR\HH��DGYLVRU�RU�FRQVXOWDQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�VXFK�FDSDFLW\�IRU�WKH�
SULPDU\�SXUSRVH�RI�VROLFLWLQJ�RU�UHWDLQLQJ�KLV��KHU�RU�LWV�VHUYLFHV���LL��DQ\�FRQYHUWLEOH�SURPLVVRU\�QRWHV�LVVXHG�
E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG��LLL��DQ\�6$)(V�LVVXHG��

�
³)LUVW� (TXLW\� )LQDQFLQJ� 3ULFH´� VKDOO� PHDQ� �[�� LI� WKH� SUH�PRQH\� YDOXDWLRQ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\�

LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR�WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�LV�OHVV�WKDQ�RU�HTXDO�WR�WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�&DS��WKH�ORZHVW�SULFH�
SHU�VKDUH�RI�WKH�(TXLW\�6HFXULWLHV�VROG�LQ�WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�RU��\��LI�WKH�SUH�PRQH\�YDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
&RPSDQ\� LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU� WR� WKH�)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ� LV�JUHDWHU� WKDQ� WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�&DS�� WKH�6$)(�
3ULFH��

�
³)XOO\�'LOXWHG�&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ´�VKDOO�PHDQ�WKH�DJJUHJDWH�QXPEHU��DV�RI�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR�WKH�

)LUVW�(TXLW\�)LQDQFLQJ�� RI� LVVXHG� DQG�RXWVWDQGLQJ� VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�� DVVXPLQJ� IXOO� FRQYHUVLRQ�RU�
H[HUFLVH� RI� DOO� FRQYHUWLEOH� DQG� H[HUFLVDEOH� VHFXULWLHV� WKHQ� RXWVWDQGLQJ�� LQFOXGLQJ� VKDUHV� RI� FRQYHUWLEOH�
3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN�DQG�DOO�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YHVWHG�RU�XQYHVWHG�RSWLRQV�RU�ZDUUDQWV�WR�SXUFKDVH�&DSLWDO�6WRFN��EXW�
H[FOXGLQJ��L��WKH�LVVXDQFH�RI�DOO�VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�UHVHUYHG�DQG�DYDLODEOH�IRU�IXWXUH�LVVXDQFH�XQGHU�
DQ\� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� H[LVWLQJ� HTXLW\� LQFHQWLYH� SODQV�� �LL�� FRQYHUWLEOH� SURPLVVRU\� QRWHV� LVVXHG� E\� WKH�
&RPSDQ\�� �LLL�� DQ\� 6$)(V�� DQG� �LY�� DQ\� HTXLW\� VHFXULWLHV� WKDW� DUH� LVVXDEOH� XSRQ� FRQYHUVLRQ� RI� DQ\�
RXWVWDQGLQJ�FRQYHUWLEOH�SURPLVVRU\�QRWHV�RU�6$)(V��

³,QWHUPHGLDU\´� PHDQV� 2SHQ'HDO� 3RUWDO� //&�� D� UHJLVWHUHG� VHFXULWLHV� FURZGIXQGLQJ� SRUWDO�
&5'���������RU�D�TXDOLILHG�VXFFHVVRU��

�
³,32´� PHDQV� WKH� FORVLQJ� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� ILUVW� ILUP� FRPPLWPHQW� XQGHUZULWWHQ� LQLWLDO� SXEOLF�

RIIHULQJ�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�SXUVXDQW�WR�DQ�HIIHFWLYH�UHJLVWUDWLRQ�VWDWHPHQW�ILOHG�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW��
�
³/LTXLGLW\�&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ´�PHDQV�WKH�QXPEHU��DV�RI�LPPHGLDWHO\�SULRU�WR�WKH�/LTXLGLW\�(YHQW��RI�

VKDUHV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� FDSLWDO� VWRFN� �RQ� DQ� DV�FRQYHUWHG� EDVLV�� RXWVWDQGLQJ�� DVVXPLQJ� H[HUFLVH� RU�
FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�DOO�RXWVWDQGLQJ�YHVWHG�DQG�XQYHVWHG�RSWLRQV��ZDUUDQWV�DQG�RWKHU�FRQYHUWLEOH�VHFXULWLHV��EXW�
H[FOXGLQJ���L��VKDUHV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�UHVHUYHG�DQG�DYDLODEOH�IRU�IXWXUH�JUDQW�XQGHU�DQ\�HTXLW\�LQFHQWLYH�
RU�VLPLODU�SODQ���LL��DQ\�6$)(V��DQG��LLL��FRQYHUWLEOH�SURPLVVRU\�QRWHV���

�
³/LTXLGLW\�(YHQW´�PHDQV�D�&KDQJH�RI�&RQWURO�RU�DQ�,32���
�
³/LTXLGLW\�3ULFH´�PHDQV� WKH�SULFH�SHU�VKDUH�HTXDO� WR� �[�� WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�&DS�GLYLGHG�E\� �\�� WKH�

/LTXLGLW\�&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ��

³/RFN�XS�3HULRG´�PHDQV�WKH�SHULRG�FRPPHQFLQJ�RQ�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�ILQDO�SURVSHFWXV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�
&RPSDQ\¶V�,32��DQG�HQGLQJ�RQ�WKH�GDWH�VSHFLILHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�PDQDJLQJ�XQGHUZULWHU�V���6XFK�
SHULRG�VKDOO�QRW�H[FHHG�RQH�KXQGUHG�HLJKW\�������GD\V��RU�VXFK�RWKHU�SHULRG�DV�PD\�EH�UHTXHVWHG�E\�WKH�
&RPSDQ\� RU� DQ� XQGHUZULWHU� WR� DFFRPPRGDWH� UHJXODWRU\� UHVWULFWLRQV� RQ� �L�� WKH� SXEOLFDWLRQ� RU� RWKHU�
GLVWULEXWLRQ�RI�UHVHDUFK�UHSRUWV��DQG��LL��DQDO\VW�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�DQG�RSLQLRQV��

�
³3UHIHUUHG�6WRFN´�PHDQV�WKH�SUHIHUUHG�VWRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�
³5HJXODWLRQ�&)´�PHDQV�5HJXODWLRQ�&URZGIXQGLQJ�SURPXOJDWHG�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW��
�
³6$)(´�PHDQV�DQ\�VLPSOH�DJUHHPHQW�IRU�IXWXUH�HTXLW\��RU�RWKHU�VLPLODU�DJUHHPHQW���LQFOXGLQJ�D�

&URZG�6$)(��ZKLFK�LV�LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�ERQD�ILGH�ILQDQFLQJ�SXUSRVHV�DQG�ZKLFK�PD\�FRQYHUW�
LQWR�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�LWV�WHUPV��

�
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³6$)(�3ULFH´�PHDQV�WKH�SULFH�SHU�VKDUH�HTXDO�WR��[��WKH�9DOXDWLRQ�&DS�GLYLGHG�E\��\��WKH�)XOO\�
'LOXWHG�&DSLWDOL]DWLRQ��

�
���� Company Representations 
 

�D�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\� LV�D�FRUSRUDWLRQ�GXO\� LQFRUSRUDWHG��YDOLGO\�H[LVWLQJ�DQG� LQ�JRRG�VWDQGLQJ�
XQGHU�WKH�ODZV�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�LWV�LQFRUSRUDWLRQ��DQG�KDV�WKH�SRZHU�DQG�DXWKRULW\�WR�RZQ��OHDVH�DQG�RSHUDWH�
LWV�SURSHUWLHV�DQG�FDUU\�RQ�LWV�EXVLQHVV�DV�QRZ�FRQGXFWHG��

�E�� 7KH�H[HFXWLRQ��GHOLYHU\�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�LV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�
SRZHU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG��RWKHU�WKDQ�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�DFWLRQV�WR�EH�WDNHQ�ZKHQ�HTXLW\�LV�WR�EH�LVVXHG�WR�
,QYHVWRU��KDV�EHHQ�GXO\�DXWKRUL]HG�E\�DOO�QHFHVVDU\�DFWLRQV�RQ�WKH�SDUW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\���7KLV�LQVWUXPHQW�
FRQVWLWXWHV� D� OHJDO�� YDOLG� DQG� ELQGLQJ� REOLJDWLRQ� RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�� HQIRUFHDEOH� DJDLQVW� WKH�&RPSDQ\� LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�LWV�WHUPV��H[FHSW�DV�OLPLWHG�E\�EDQNUXSWF\��LQVROYHQF\�RU�RWKHU�ODZV�RI�JHQHUDO�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
UHODWLQJ�WR�RU�DIIHFWLQJ�WKH�HQIRUFHPHQW�RI�FUHGLWRUV¶�ULJKWV�JHQHUDOO\�DQG�JHQHUDO�SULQFLSOHV�RI�HTXLW\���7R�
WKH�NQRZOHGJH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LW�LV�QRW�LQ�YLRODWLRQ�RI��L��LWV�FXUUHQW�FKDUWHU�RU�E\ODZV���LL��DQ\�PDWHULDO�
VWDWXWH��UXOH�RU�UHJXODWLRQ�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��RU��LLL��DQ\�PDWHULDO�LQGHQWXUH�RU�FRQWUDFW�WR�ZKLFK�
WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�D�SDUW\�RU�E\�ZKLFK�LW�LV�ERXQG��ZKHUH��LQ�HDFK�FDVH��VXFK�YLRODWLRQ�RU�GHIDXOW��LQGLYLGXDOO\��
RU�WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DOO�VXFK�YLRODWLRQV�RU�GHIDXOWV��FRXOG�UHDVRQDEO\�EH�H[SHFWHG�WR�KDYH�D�PDWHULDO�DGYHUVH�
HIIHFW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\��

�F�� 7KH�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�FRQVXPPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�WUDQVDFWLRQV�FRQWHPSODWHG�E\�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�
GR�QRW�DQG�ZLOO�QRW���L��YLRODWH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�MXGJPHQW��VWDWXWH��UXOH�RU�UHJXODWLRQ�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
�LL��UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�DFFHOHUDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�PDWHULDO�LQGHQWXUH�RU�FRQWUDFW�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LV�D�SDUW\�RU�E\�
ZKLFK�LW�LV�ERXQG��RU��LLL��UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�FUHDWLRQ�RU�LPSRVLWLRQ�RI�DQ\�OLHQ�XSRQ�DQ\�SURSHUW\��DVVHW�RU�UHYHQXH�
RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�WKH�VXVSHQVLRQ��IRUIHLWXUH��RU�QRQUHQHZDO�RI�DQ\�PDWHULDO�SHUPLW��OLFHQVH�RU�DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�
DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��LWV�EXVLQHVV�RU�RSHUDWLRQV��

�G�� 1R� FRQVHQWV� RU� DSSURYDOV� DUH� UHTXLUHG� LQ� FRQQHFWLRQ� ZLWK� WKH� SHUIRUPDQFH� RI� WKLV�
LQVWUXPHQW�� RWKHU� WKDQ�� �L�� WKH� &RPSDQ\¶V� FRUSRUDWH� DSSURYDOV�� �LL�� DQ\� TXDOLILFDWLRQV� RU� ILOLQJV� XQGHU�
DSSOLFDEOH� VHFXULWLHV� ODZV��DQG� �LLL��QHFHVVDU\�FRUSRUDWH�DSSURYDOV� IRU� WKH�DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�RI� VKDUHV�RI�&)�
6KDGRZ�6HULHV�LVVXDEOH�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ����

�H�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�VKDOO��SULRU�WR�WKH�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��UHVHUYH�IURP�LWV�DXWKRUL]HG�
EXW�XQLVVXHG�VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�IRU�LVVXDQFH� DQG�GHOLYHU\�XSRQ�WKH�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��VXFK�
QXPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�DV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HIIHFW�WKH�FRQYHUVLRQ�FRQWHPSODWHG�E\�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��
DQG�� IURP� WLPH� WR� WLPH�� ZLOO� WDNH� DOO� VWHSV� QHFHVVDU\� WR� DPHQG� LWV� FKDUWHU� WR�SURYLGH�VXIILFLHQW�
DXWKRUL]HG�QXPEHUV�RI�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�LVVXDEOH�XSRQ�WKH�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW���$OO�VXFK�
VKDUHV�VKDOO� EH�GXO\�DXWKRUL]HG��DQG�ZKHQ�LVVXHG�XSRQ�DQ\�VXFK�FRQYHUVLRQ��VKDOO�EH�YDOLGO\�LVVXHG��IXOO\�
SDLG�DQG�QRQ�DVVHVVDEOH��IUHH�DQG�FOHDU�RI�DOO�OLHQV��VHFXULW\�LQWHUHVWV��FKDUJHV�DQG�RWKHU� HQFXPEUDQFHV�RU�
UHVWULFWLRQV�RQ�VDOH�DQG�IUHH�DQG�FOHDU�RI�DOO�SUHHPSWLYH�ULJKWV��H[FHSW�HQFXPEUDQFHV�RU�UHVWULFWLRQV�DULVLQJ�
XQGHU�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV��

�I�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV��L��QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�ILOH�UHSRUWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ����RU�6HFWLRQ����G��RI�
WKH�([FKDQJH�$FW���LL��QRW�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPSDQ\�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ���RI�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPSDQ\�$FW�
RI�������WKH�³,QYHVWPHQW�&RPSDQ\�$FW´���DQG�LV�QRW�H[FOXGHG�IURP�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPSDQ\�
E\�6HFWLRQ���E��RU�6HFWLRQ���F��RI�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPSDQ\�$FW���LLL��QRW�GLVTXDOLILHG�IURP�VHOOLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�
XQGHU�5XOH�����D��RI�5HJXODWLRQ�&)���LY��QRW�EDUUHG�IURP�VHOOLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ���D�����RI�WKH�
6HFXULWLHV�$FW�GXH�WR�D�IDLOXUH�WR�PDNH�WLPHO\�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�ILOLQJV���YL��QRW�SODQQLQJ�WR�HQJDJH�LQ�D�PHUJHU�
RU�DFTXLVLWLRQ�ZLWK�DQ�XQLGHQWLILHG�FRPSDQ\�RU�FRPSDQLHV��DQG��YLL��RUJDQL]HG�XQGHU��DQG�VXEMHFW�WR��WKH�
ODZV�RI�D�VWDWH�RU�WHUULWRU\�RI�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RU�WKH�'LVWULFW�RI�&ROXPELD��
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�J�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV��RU�ZLOO�VKRUWO\�DIWHU�WKH�LVVXDQFH�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��HQJDJH�D�WUDQVIHU�
DJHQW�UHJLVWHUHG�ZLWK�WKH�8�6��6HFXULWLHV�DQG�([FKDQJH�&RPPLVVLRQ�WR�DFW�DV�WKH�VROH�UHJLVWUDU�DQG�WUDQVIHU�
DJHQW�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�&URZG�6$)(��
 

�K�� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV��L��QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�ILOH�UHSRUWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�VHFWLRQ����RU�VHFWLRQ����G��RI�
WKH�6HFXULWLHV�([FKDQJH�$FW�RI�������WKH�³([FKDQJH�$FW´����LL��QRW�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�FRPSDQ\�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�
VHFWLRQ���RI�WKH�,QYHVWPHQW�&RPSDQ\�$FW�RI�������DQG�LV�QRW�H[FOXGHG�IURP�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�
FRPSDQ\�E\�VHFWLRQ���E��RU�VHFWLRQ���F��RI�VXFK�$FW���LLL��QRW�GLVTXDOLILHG�IURP�VHOOLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�XQGHU�5XOH�
����D��RI�5HJXODWLRQ�&)���LY��QRW�EDUUHG�IURP�VHOOLQJ�VHFXULWLHV�XQGHU����D�����GXH� WR�D�IDLOXUH� WR�PDNH�
WLPHO\�DQQXDO�UHSRUW�ILOLQJV�� �YL��QRW�SODQQLQJ�WR�HQJDJH�LQ�D�PHUJHU�RU�DFTXLVLWLRQ�ZLWK�DQ�XQLGHQWLILHG�
FRPSDQ\�RU�FRPSDQLHV��DQG��YLL��RUJDQL]HG�XQGHU��DQG�VXEMHFW� WR�� WKH� ODZV�RI�D�VWDWH�RU� WHUULWRU\�RI� WKH�
8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RU�WKH�'LVWULFW�RI�&ROXPELD��
�
���� Investor Representations 
�

�D�� 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� KDV� IXOO� OHJDO� FDSDFLW\�� SRZHU� DQG� DXWKRULW\� WR� H[HFXWH� DQG� GHOLYHU� WKLV�
LQVWUXPHQW� DQG� WR� SHUIRUP� LWV� REOLJDWLRQV� KHUHXQGHU�� � 7KLV� LQVWUXPHQW� FRQVWLWXWHV� D� YDOLG� DQG� ELQGLQJ�
REOLJDWLRQ� RI� WKH� ,QYHVWRU�� HQIRUFHDEOH� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� LWV� WHUPV�� H[FHSW� DV� OLPLWHG� E\� EDQNUXSWF\��
LQVROYHQF\�RU�RWKHU�ODZV�RI�JHQHUDO�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�RU�DIIHFWLQJ�WKH�HQIRUFHPHQW�RI�FUHGLWRUV¶�ULJKWV�
JHQHUDOO\�DQG�JHQHUDO�SULQFLSOHV�RI�HTXLW\���

�
�E�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�KDV�EHHQ�DGYLVHG�WKDW�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV�KDYH�QRW�

EHHQ�UHJLVWHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RU�DQ\�VWDWH�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV�DQG�DUH�RIIHUHG�DQG�VROG�KHUHE\�SXUVXDQW�
WR� 6HFWLRQ� ��D����� RI� WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�� � 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� XQGHUVWDQGV� WKDW� QHLWKHU� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� QRU� WKH�
XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV�PD\�EH�UHVROG�RU�RWKHUZLVH�WUDQVIHUUHG�XQOHVV�WKH\�DUH�UHJLVWHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�
$FW�DQG�DSSOLFDEOH�VWDWH�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV�RU�SXUVXDQW�WR�5XOH�����RI�5HJXODWLRQ�&)��LQ�ZKLFK�FDVH�FHUWDLQ�
VWDWH�WUDQVIHU�UHVWULFWLRQV�PD\�DSSO\��

�
�F�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�LV�SXUFKDVLQJ�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�WKH�VHFXULWLHV�WR�EH�DFTXLUHG�E\�WKH�,QYHVWRU�

KHUHXQGHU�IRU�LWV�RZQ�DFFRXQW�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW��QRW�DV�D�QRPLQHH�RU�DJHQW��DQG�QRW�ZLWK�D�YLHZ�WR��RU�IRU�
UHVDOH� LQ� FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�� WKH� GLVWULEXWLRQ� WKHUHRI�� DQG� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� KDV� QR�SUHVHQW� LQWHQWLRQ�RI� VHOOLQJ��
JUDQWLQJ� DQ\� SDUWLFLSDWLRQ� LQ�� RU� RWKHUZLVH� GLVWULEXWLQJ� WKH� VDPH�� 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� XQGHUVWDQGV� WKDW� WKH�
6HFXULWLHV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ��DQG�ZLOO�QRW�EH��UHJLVWHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�RU�DQ\�VWDWH�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV��
E\�UHDVRQ�RI�VSHFLILF�H[HPSWLRQV�XQGHU�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�WKHUHRI�ZKLFK�GHSHQG�XSRQ��DPRQJ�RWKHU�WKLQJV��WKH�
ERQD�ILGH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�LQWHQW�DQG�WKH�DFFXUDF\�RI�HDFK�,QYHVWRU¶V�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�DV�H[SUHVVHG�
KHUHLQ��

�
�G�� 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� DFNQRZOHGJHV�� DQG� LV� SXUFKDVLQJ� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� LQ� FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�� WKH�

LQYHVWPHQW�OLPLWDWLRQV�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�5XOH�����D�����RI�5HJXODWLRQ�&)��SURPXOJDWHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ���D�����%��
RI�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW��

�
�H�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�DFNQRZOHGJHV�WKDW�WKH�,QYHVWRU�KDV�UHFHLYHG�DOO�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WKH�,QYHVWRU�

KDV�UHTXHVWHG�IURP�WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�,QYHVWRU�FRQVLGHUV�QHFHVVDU\�RU�DSSURSULDWH�IRU�GHFLGLQJ�ZKHWKHU�
WR�DFTXLUH�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV��DQG�WKH�,QYHVWRU�UHSUHVHQWV�WKDW�WKH�,QYHVWRU�KDV�
KDG� DQ� RSSRUWXQLW\� WR� DVN� TXHVWLRQV� DQG� UHFHLYH� DQVZHUV� IURP� WKH� &RPSDQ\� UHJDUGLQJ� WKH� WHUPV� DQG�
FRQGLWLRQV� RI� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� DQG� WKH� XQGHUO\LQJ� VHFXULWLHV� DQG� WR� REWDLQ� DQ\� DGGLWLRQDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ�
QHFHVVDU\� WR�YHULI\� WKH�DFFXUDF\�RI� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ�JLYHQ� WR� WKH� ,QYHVWRU�� � ,Q�GHFLGLQJ� WR�SXUFKDVH� WKLV�
LQVWUXPHQW��WKH�,QYHVWRU�LV�QRW�UHO\LQJ�RQ�WKH�DGYLFH�RU�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�RI�5HSXEOLF�FR�
DQG� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� KDV�PDGH� LWV� RZQ� LQGHSHQGHQW� GHFLVLRQ� WKDW� DQ� LQYHVWPHQW� LQ� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� DQG� WKH�
XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV�LV�VXLWDEOH�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�IRU�WKH�,QYHVWRU���7KH�,QYHVWRU�XQGHUVWDQGV�WKDW�QR�IHGHUDO�



�

������
�

RU�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KDV�SDVVHG�XSRQ�WKH�PHULWV�RU�ULVNV�RI�DQ�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�
VHFXULWLHV�RU�PDGH�DQ\�ILQGLQJ�RU�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�IDLUQHVV�RU�DGYLVDELOLW\�RI�WKLV�LQYHVWPHQW��

�
�I�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�XQGHUVWDQGV�DQG�DFNQRZOHGJHV�WKDW�DV�D�&URZG�6$)(�LQYHVWRU��WKH�,QYHVWRU�

VKDOO�KDYH�QR�YRWLQJ��LQIRUPDWLRQ�RU�LQVSHFWLRQ�ULJKWV��DVLGH�IURP�DQ\�GLVFORVXUH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�PDNH�XQGHU�UHOHYDQW�VHFXULWLHV�UHJXODWLRQV��

�
�J�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�XQGHUVWDQGV� WKDW�QR�SXEOLF�PDUNHW� QRZ�H[LVWV� IRU� DQ\� RI� WKH� VHFXULWLHV�

LVVXHG� E\� WKH� &RPSDQ\�� DQG� WKDW� WKH� &RPSDQ\� KDV� PDGH� QR�DVVXUDQFHV�WKDW�D�SXEOLF�PDUNHW�ZLOO�HYHU�
H[LVW�IRU�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�WKH�VHFXULWLHV�WR�EH�DFTXLUHG�E\�WKH�,QYHVWRU�KHUHXQGHU��
�

�K�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�LV�QRW��L��D�FLWL]HQ�RU�UHVLGHQW�RI�D�JHRJUDSKLF�DUHD�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�SXUFKDVH�RU�
KROGLQJ� RI� WKH� &URZG� 6$)(� DQG� WKH� XQGHUO\LQJ� VHFXULWLHV� LV� SURKLELWHG� E\� DSSOLFDEOH� ODZ�� GHFUHH��
UHJXODWLRQ��WUHDW\��RU�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�DFW���LL��D�FLWL]HQ�RU�UHVLGHQW�RI��RU�ORFDWHG�LQ��D�JHRJUDSKLF�DUHD�WKDW�LV�
VXEMHFW�WR�8�6��RU�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�VDQFWLRQV�RU�HPEDUJRHV��RU��LLL��DQ�LQGLYLGXDO��RU�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�HPSOR\HG�
E\�RU�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�DQ�HQWLW\��LGHQWLILHG�RQ�WKH�8�6��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�&RPPHUFH¶V�'HQLHG�3HUVRQV�RU�(QWLW\�
/LVW��WKH�8�6��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�7UHDVXU\¶V�6SHFLDOO\�'HVLJQDWHG�1DWLRQDOV�/LVW��WKH�8�6��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�6WDWH¶V�
'HEDUUHG� 3DUWLHV� /LVW� RU� RWKHU� DSSOLFDEOH� VDQFWLRQV� OLVWV�� ,QYHVWRU� KHUHE\� UHSUHVHQWV� DQG� DJUHHV� WKDW� LI�
,QYHVWRU¶V�FRXQWU\�RI�UHVLGHQFH�RU�RWKHU�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�FKDQJH�VXFK�WKDW�WKH�DERYH�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�DUH�QR�
ORQJHU�DFFXUDWH��,QYHVWRU�ZLOO�LPPHGLDWHO\�QRWLI\�&RPSDQ\��,QYHVWRU�IXUWKHU�UHSUHVHQWV�DQG�ZDUUDQWV�WKDW�LW�
ZLOO�QRW�NQRZLQJO\�VHOO�RU�RWKHUZLVH�WUDQVIHU�DQ\�LQWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�&URZG�6$)(�RU�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV�
WR�D�SDUW\�VXEMHFW�WR�8�6��RU�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�VDQFWLRQV��

�
�L�� ,I� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� LV� QRW� D�8QLWHG�6WDWHV� SHUVRQ� �DV� GHILQHG� E\�6HFWLRQ������D������ RI� WKH�

,QWHUQDO�5HYHQXH�&RGH�RI�������DV�DPHQGHG���WKH�,QYHVWRU�KHUHE\�UHSUHVHQWV�WKDW�LW�KDV�VDWLVILHG�LWVHOI�DV�WR�
WKH� IXOO� REVHUYDQFH� RI� WKH� ODZV� RI� LWV� MXULVGLFWLRQ� LQ� FRQQHFWLRQ� ZLWK� DQ\� LQYLWDWLRQ�� VXEVFULSWLRQ� DQG�
SD\PHQW�IRU��DQG�FRQWLQXHG�RZQHUVKLS�RI�� LWV�EHQHILFLDO� LQWHUHVW� LQ�WKH�&URZG�6$)(�DQG�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�
VHFXULWLHV�ZLOO�QRW�YLRODWH�DQ\�DSSOLFDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�RU�RWKHU�ODZV�RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU¶V�MXULVGLFWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ��L��
WKH�OHJDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�ZLWKLQ�LWV�MXULVGLFWLRQ�IRU�WKH�VXEVFULSWLRQ�DQG�WKH�SXUFKDVH�RI�LWV�EHQHILFLDO�LQWHUHVW�
LQ�WKH�&URZG�6$)(���LL��DQ\�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�UHVWULFWLRQV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�VXFK�VXEVFULSWLRQ�DQG�SXUFKDVH��
�LLL��DQ\�JRYHUQPHQWDO�RU�RWKHU�FRQVHQWV�WKDW�PD\�QHHG�WR�EH�REWDLQHG��DQG��LY��WKH�LQFRPH�WD[�DQG�RWKHU�
WD[�FRQVHTXHQFHV��LI�DQ\��WKDW�PD\�EH�UHOHYDQW�WR�WKH�SXUFKDVH��KROGLQJ��FRQYHUVLRQ��UHGHPSWLRQ��VDOH��RU�
WUDQVIHU� RI� LWV� EHQHILFLDO� LQWHUHVW� LQ� WKH� &URZG� 6$)(� DQG� WKH� XQGHUO\LQJ� VHFXULWLHV�� 7KH� ,QYHVWRU�
DFNQRZOHGJHV� WKDW� WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV� WDNHQ�QR�DFWLRQ� LQ� IRUHLJQ� MXULVGLFWLRQV�ZLWK� UHVSHFW� WR� WKH�&URZG�
6$)(��DQG�WKH�,QYHVWRU¶V�EHQHILFLDO�LQWHUHVW�WKHUHLQ��DQG�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV��

�
�M�� ,I�WKH�,QYHVWRU�LV�D�FRUSRUDWH�HQWLW\���L��VXFK�FRUSRUDWH�HQWLW\�LV�GXO\�LQFRUSRUDWHG��YDOLGO\�

H[LVWLQJ�DQG�LQ�JRRG�VWDQGLQJ�XQGHU�WKH�ODZV�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�LWV�LQFRUSRUDWLRQ��DQG�KDV�WKH�SRZHU�DQG�DXWKRULW\�
WR�HQWHU�LQWR�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW���LL��WKH�H[HFXWLRQ��GHOLYHU\�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�E\�WKH�,QYHVWRU�RI�WKH�$JUHHPHQW�
LV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�SRZHU�RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU�DQG�KDV�EHHQ�GXO\�DXWKRUL]HG�E\�DOO�QHFHVVDU\�DFWLRQV�RQ�WKH�SDUW�RI�WKH�
,QYHVWRU���LLL��WR�WKH�NQRZOHGJH�RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU��LW�LV�QRW�LQ�YLRODWLRQ�RI�LWV�FXUUHQW�FKDUWHU�RU�E\ODZV��DQ\�
PDWHULDO�VWDWXWH��UXOH�RU�UHJXODWLRQ�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�,QYHVWRU��DQG��LY��WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�WKH�$JUHHPHQW�GRHV�
QRW�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�YLRODWH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�MXGJPHQW��VWDWXWH��UXOH�RU�UHJXODWLRQ�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�,QYHVWRU��UHVXOW�
LQ�WKH�DFFHOHUDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�PDWHULDO�LQGHQWXUH�RU�FRQWUDFW�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�,QYHVWRU�LV�D�SDUW\�RU�E\�ZKLFK�LW�LV�
ERXQG��RU�RWKHUZLVH�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�FUHDWLRQ�RU�LPSRVLWLRQ�RI�DQ\�OLHQ�XSRQ�WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW��

�
�N�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�IXUWKHU�DFNQRZOHGJHV�WKDW�LW�KDV�UHDG��XQGHUVWRRG��DQG�KDG�DPSOH�RSSRUWXQLW\�

WR�DVN�&RPSDQ\�TXHVWLRQV�DERXW�LWV�EXVLQHVV�SODQV��³5LVN�)DFWRUV�´�DQG�DOO�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�
WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�)RUP�&�DQG�WKH�RIIHULQJ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�ILOHG�ZLWK�WKH�6(&���

�
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�O�� 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� UHSUHVHQWV� WKDW� WKH� ,QYHVWRU�XQGHUVWDQGV� WKH� VXEVWDQWLDO� OLNHOLKRRG� WKDW� WKH�
,QYHVWRU�ZLOO�VXIIHU�D�727$/�/266�RI�DOO�FDSLWDO�LQYHVWHG��DQG�WKDW�,QYHVWRU�LV�SUHSDUHG�WR�EHDU�WKH�ULVN�
RI�VXFK�WRWDO�ORVV��

�
����Transfer Restrictions���
�

�D�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�KHUHE\�DJUHHV�WKDW�GXULQJ�WKH�/RFN�XS�3HULRG�LW�ZLOO�QRW��ZLWKRXW�WKH�SULRU�
ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�PDQDJLQJ�XQGHUZULWHU���$��OHQG��RIIHU��SOHGJH��VHOO��FRQWUDFW�WR�VHOO��VHOO�DQ\�RSWLRQ�
RU� FRQWUDFW� WR� SXUFKDVH�� SXUFKDVH� DQ\� RSWLRQ� RU� FRQWUDFW� WR� VHOO�� JUDQW� DQ\� RSWLRQ�� ULJKW�� RU�ZDUUDQW� WR�
SXUFKDVH��RU�RWKHUZLVH�WUDQVIHU�RU�GLVSRVH�RI��GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\��DQ\�VKDUHV�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�RU�DQ\�
VHFXULWLHV� FRQYHUWLEOH� LQWR� RU� H[HUFLVDEOH� RU� H[FKDQJHDEOH� �GLUHFWO\� RU� LQGLUHFWO\�� IRU� &RPPRQ� 6WRFN�
�ZKHWKHU�VXFK�VKDUHV�RU�DQ\�VXFK�VHFXULWLHV�DUH�WKHQ�RZQHG�E\�WKH�,QYHVWRU�RU�DUH�WKHUHDIWHU�DFTXLUHG���RU�
�%�� HQWHU� LQWR� DQ\� VZDS�RU� RWKHU� DUUDQJHPHQW� WKDW� WUDQVIHUV� WR� DQRWKHU�� LQ�ZKROH� RU� LQ� SDUW�� DQ\�RI� WKH�
HFRQRPLF�FRQVHTXHQFHV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�RI�VXFK�VHFXULWLHV��ZKHWKHU�DQ\�VXFK�WUDQVDFWLRQ�GHVFULEHG�LQ�FODXVH�
�$��RU��%��DERYH�LV�WR�EH�VHWWOHG�E\�GHOLYHU\�RI�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�RU�RWKHU�VHFXULWLHV��LQ�FDVK��RU�RWKHUZLVH���

�
�E�� 7KH�IRUHJRLQJ�SURYLVLRQV�RI�6HFWLRQ���D��ZLOO���[��DSSO\�RQO\�WR�WKH�,32�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�DSSO\�

WR� WKH�VDOH�RI�DQ\�VKDUHV� WR�DQ�XQGHUZULWHU�SXUVXDQW� WR�DQ�XQGHUZULWLQJ�DJUHHPHQW�� �\��QRW�DSSO\� WR� WKH�
WUDQVIHU�RI�DQ\�VKDUHV�WR�DQ\�WUXVW�IRU�WKH�GLUHFW�RU�LQGLUHFW�EHQHILW�RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU�RU�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�IDPLO\�
RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU��SURYLGHG�WKDW�WKH�WUXVWHH�RI�WKH�WUXVW�DJUHHV�WR�EH�ERXQG�LQ�ZULWLQJ�E\�WKH�UHVWULFWLRQV�VHW�
IRUWK�KHUHLQ��DQG�SURYLGHG�IXUWKHU�WKDW�DQ\�VXFK�WUDQVIHU�ZLOO�QRW�LQYROYH�D�GLVSRVLWLRQ�IRU�YDOXH��DQG��]��EH�
DSSOLFDEOH� WR� WKH� ,QYHVWRU� RQO\� LI� DOO� RIILFHUV� DQG� GLUHFWRUV� RI� WKH� &RPSDQ\� DUH� VXEMHFW� WR� WKH� VDPH�
UHVWULFWLRQV�DQG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�XVHV�FRPPHUFLDOO\�UHDVRQDEOH�HIIRUWV�WR�REWDLQ�D�VLPLODU�DJUHHPHQW�IURP�DOO�
VWRFNKROGHUV� LQGLYLGXDOO\� RZQLQJ� PRUH� WKDQ� ��� RI� WKH� RXWVWDQGLQJ� &RPPRQ� 6WRFN� RU� DQ\� VHFXULWLHV�
FRQYHUWLEOH� LQWR� RU� H[HUFLVDEOH� RU� H[FKDQJHDEOH� �GLUHFWO\� RU� LQGLUHFWO\�� IRU� &RPPRQ� 6WRFN���
1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ�DQ\WKLQJ�KHUHLQ�WR�WKH�FRQWUDU\��WKH�XQGHUZULWHUV�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�,32�DUH�LQWHQGHG�
WKLUG�SDUW\� EHQHILFLDULHV� RI� 6HFWLRQ� ��D�� DQG� ZLOO� KDYH� WKH� ULJKW�� SRZHU� DQG� DXWKRULW\� WR� HQIRUFH� WKH�
SURYLVLRQV� KHUHRI� DV� WKRXJK� WKH\� ZHUH� D� SDUW\� KHUHWR�� � 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� IXUWKHU� DJUHHV� WR� H[HFXWH� VXFK�
DJUHHPHQWV� DV� PD\� EH� UHDVRQDEO\� UHTXHVWHG� E\� WKH� XQGHUZULWHUV� LQ� FRQQHFWLRQ� ZLWK� WKH� ,32� WKDW� DUH�
FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ���D��RU�WKDW�DUH�QHFHVVDU\�WR�JLYH�IXUWKHU�HIIHFW�WKHUHWR��

��
�F�� ,Q� RUGHU� WR� HQIRUFH� WKH� IRUHJRLQJ� FRYHQDQW�� WKH� &RPSDQ\� PD\� LPSRVH� VWRS� WUDQVIHU�

LQVWUXFWLRQV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�,QYHVWRU¶V�UHJLVWUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�VKDUHV�
RU�VHFXULWLHV�RI�HYHU\�RWKHU�SHUVRQ�VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�UHVWULFWLRQ��XQWLO�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�/RFN�XS�3HULRG��
7KH� ,QYHVWRU� DJUHHV� WKDW� D� OHJHQG� UHDGLQJ� VXEVWDQWLDOO\� DV� IROORZV� ZLOO� EH� SODFHG� RQ� DOO� FHUWLILFDWHV�
UHSUHVHQWLQJ�DOO�RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU¶V�UHJLVWUDEOH�VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��DQG�WKH�VKDUHV�RU�VHFXULWLHV�RI�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�KHOG�E\�HYHU\�RWKHU�SHUVRQ�VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�UHVWULFWLRQ�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ���D����

�
7+(�6(&85,7,(6�5(35(6(17('�%<�7+,6�&(57,),&$7(�$5(�68%-(&7�72�$�
/2&.�83�3(5,2'�%(*,11,1*�21�7+(�())(&7,9(�'$7(�2)�7+(�&203$1<¶6�
5(*,675$7,21�67$7(0(17�),/('�81'(5�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�$&7�2)�������$6�
$0(1'('�� $6� 6(7� )257+� ,1� $1� $*5((0(17� %(7:((1� 7+(� &203$1<�
$1'�7+(�25,*,1$/�+2/'(5�2)�7+(6(�6(&85,7,(6��$�&23<�2)�:+,&+�0$<�
%(� 2%7$,1('� $7� 7+(� &203$1<¶6� 35,1&,3$/� 2)),&(�� � 68&+� /2&.�83�
3(5,2'�,6�%,1',1*�21�75$16)(5((6�2)�7+(6(�6(&85,7,(6��

�G�� :LWKRXW�LQ�DQ\�ZD\�OLPLWLQJ�WKH�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�DQG�ZDUUDQWLHV�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�6HFWLRQ���DERYH��
WKH� ,QYHVWRU� IXUWKHU� DJUHHV� QRW� WR�PDNH� DQ\� GLVSRVLWLRQ� RI� DOO� RU� DQ\� SRUWLRQ� RI� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� RU� WKH�



�
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�

XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV�XQOHVV�DQG�XQWLO�WKH�WUDQVIHUHH�KDV�DJUHHG�LQ�ZULWLQJ�IRU�WKH�EHQHILW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WR�
PDNH�WKH�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV�DQG�ZDUUDQWLHV�VHW�RXW�LQ�6HFWLRQ���DQG�WKH�XQGHUWDNLQJ�VHW�RXW�LQ�6HFWLRQ���D��DQG��

�L�� 7KHUH�LV�WKHQ�LQ�HIIHFW�D�UHJLVWUDWLRQ�VWDWHPHQW�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW�FRYHULQJ�
VXFK�SURSRVHG�GLVSRVLWLRQ�DQG�VXFK�GLVSRVLWLRQ�LV�PDGH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�VXFK�UHJLVWUDWLRQ�VWDWHPHQW��RU�

�LL�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�VKDOO�KDYH�QRWLILHG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�GLVSRVLWLRQ�DQG�VKDOO�
KDYH� IXUQLVKHG� WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLWK� D� GHWDLOHG� VWDWHPHQW� RI� WKH� FLUFXPVWDQFHV� VXUURXQGLQJ� WKH� SURSRVHG�
GLVSRVLWLRQ�DQG��LI�UHDVRQDEO\�UHTXHVWHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKH�,QYHVWRU�VKDOO�KDYH�IXUQLVKHG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
ZLWK�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RI�FRXQVHO�UHDVRQDEO\�VDWLVIDFWRU\�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\�WKDW�VXFK�GLVSRVLWLRQ�ZLOO�QRW�UHTXLUH�
UHJLVWUDWLRQ�RI�VXFK�VKDUHV�XQGHU�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�$FW����

�H�� 7KH� ,QYHVWRU� DJUHHV� WKDW� LW� VKDOO� QRW� PDNH� DQ\� GLVSRVLWLRQ� RI� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� RU� DQ\�
XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV�WR�DQ\�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FRPSHWLWRUV��DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\�LQ�JRRG�IDLWK��

�
�I�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�XQGHUVWDQGV�DQG�DJUHHV�WKDW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�ZLOO�SODFH�WKH�OHJHQG�VHW�IRUWK�EHORZ�

RU�D�VLPLODU� OHJHQG�RQ�DQ\�ERRN�HQWU\�RU�RWKHU�IRUPV�RI�QRWDWLRQ�HYLGHQFLQJ�WKLV�&URZG�6$)(�DQG�DQ\�
FHUWLILFDWHV�HYLGHQFLQJ�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�VHFXULWLHV��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�DQ\�RWKHU�OHJHQGV�WKDW�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�E\�
VWDWH�RU�IHGHUDO�VHFXULWLHV�ODZV��WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�FKDUWHU�RU�E\ODZV��DQ\�RWKHU�DJUHHPHQW�EHWZHHQ�WKH�,QYHVWRU�
DQG�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�DQ\�DJUHHPHQW�EHWZHHQ�WKH�,QYHVWRU�DQG�DQ\�WKLUG�SDUW\���

7+,6�,167580(17�+$6�%((1�,668('�38568$17�72�6(&7,21���$�����2)�7+(�
6(&85,7,(6� $&7� 2)� ������ $6� $0(1'('� �7+(� ³6(&85,7,(6� $&7´��� $1'�
1(,7+(5� ,7� 125� $1<� 6(&85,7,(6� ,668$%/(� 38568$17� +(5(72� +$9(�
%((1�5(*,67(5('�81'(5�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�$&7�25�7+(�6(&85,7,(6�/$:6�
2)� $1<� 67$7(�� � 7+(6(� 6(&85,7,(6� 0$<� 127� %(� 2))(5('�� 62/'� 25�
27+(5:,6(� 75$16)(55('�� 3/('*('� 25� +<327+(&$7('� (;&(37� $6�
3(50,77('� %<� 58/(� ���� 2)� 5(*8/$7,21� &52:')81',1*� 81'(5� 7+(�
6(&85,7,(6�$&7�$1'�$33/,&$%/(�67$7(�6(&85,7,(6�/$:6�25�38568$17�
72� $1� ())(&7,9(� 5(*,675$7,21� 67$7(0(17� 25� (;(037,21�
7+(5()520��

��� Miscellaneous 
 

�D�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�DJUHHV�WR�WDNH�DQ\�DQG�DOO�DFWLRQV�GHWHUPLQHG�LQ�JRRG�IDLWK�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�
ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV� WR�EH�DGYLVDEOH� WR� UHRUJDQL]H� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� DQG�DQ\� VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN� LVVXHG�
SXUVXDQW�WR�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�LQWR�D�VSHFLDO�SXUSRVH�YHKLFOH�RU�RWKHU�HQWLW\�GHVLJQHG�WR�DJJUHJDWH�
WKH�LQWHUHVWV�RI�KROGHUV�RI�&URZG�6$)(V��

�
�E�� $Q\� SURYLVLRQ� RI� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW�PD\� EH� DPHQGHG��ZDLYHG� RU�PRGLILHG� RQO\� XSRQ� WKH�

ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�HLWKHU��L�� WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�,QYHVWRU��RU��LL�� WKH�&RPSDQ\�DQG�WKH�PDMRULW\�RI� WKH�
,QYHVWRUV��FDOFXODWHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�3XUFKDVH�$PRXQW�RI�HDFK�,QYHVWRUV�&URZG�6$)(���

�
�F�� $Q\� QRWLFH� UHTXLUHG� RU� SHUPLWWHG� E\� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� ZLOO� EH� GHHPHG� VXIILFLHQW� ZKHQ�

GHOLYHUHG�SHUVRQDOO\�RU�E\�RYHUQLJKW�FRXULHU�RU�VHQW�E\�HPDLO�WR�WKH�UHOHYDQW�DGGUHVV�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�VLJQDWXUH�
SDJH��RU����KRXUV�DIWHU�EHLQJ�GHSRVLWHG�LQ�WKH�8�6��PDLO�DV�FHUWLILHG�RU�UHJLVWHUHG�PDLO�ZLWK�SRVWDJH�SUHSDLG��
DGGUHVVHG�WR�WKH�SDUW\�WR�EH�QRWLILHG�DW�VXFK�SDUW\¶V�DGGUHVV�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�VLJQDWXUH�SDJH��DV�VXEVHTXHQWO\�
PRGLILHG�E\�ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH��



�

�������
�

�
�G�� 7KH�,QYHVWRU�LV�QRW�HQWLWOHG��DV�D�KROGHU�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��WR�YRWH�RU�UHFHLYH�GLYLGHQGV�RU�

EH�GHHPHG�WKH�KROGHU�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�IRU�DQ\�SXUSRVH��QRU�ZLOO�DQ\WKLQJ�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�EH�FRQVWUXHG�WR�
FRQIHU�RQ�WKH�,QYHVWRU��DV�VXFK��DQ\�RI�WKH�ULJKWV�RI�D�VWRFNKROGHU�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU�DQ\�ULJKW�WR�YRWH�IRU�
WKH�HOHFWLRQ�RI�GLUHFWRUV�RU�XSRQ�DQ\�PDWWHU�VXEPLWWHG�WR�VWRFNKROGHUV�DW�DQ\�PHHWLQJ�WKHUHRI��RU�WR�JLYH�RU�
ZLWKKROG�FRQVHQW�WR�DQ\�FRUSRUDWH�DFWLRQ�RU�WR�UHFHLYH�QRWLFH�RI�PHHWLQJV��RU�WR�UHFHLYH�VXEVFULSWLRQ�ULJKWV�
RU�RWKHUZLVH�XQWLO�VKDUHV�KDYH�EHHQ�LVVXHG�XSRQ�WKH�WHUPV�GHVFULEHG�KHUHLQ��

�
�H�� 1HLWKHU�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�QRU�WKH�ULJKWV�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�PD\�EH�DVVLJQHG��E\�RSHUDWLRQ�RI�

ODZ�RU�RWKHUZLVH��E\�HLWKHU�SDUW\�ZLWKRXW�WKH�SULRU�ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�RWKHU��provided, however��WKDW�WKLV�
LQVWUXPHQW� DQG�RU� WKH� ULJKWV� FRQWDLQHG� KHUHLQ�PD\� EH� DVVLJQHG�ZLWKRXW� WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V� FRQVHQW� E\� WKH�
,QYHVWRU�WR�DQ\�RWKHU�HQWLW\�ZKR�GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\��FRQWUROV��LV�FRQWUROOHG�E\�RU�LV�XQGHU�FRPPRQ�FRQWURO�
ZLWK�WKH�,QYHVWRU��LQFOXGLQJ��ZLWKRXW�OLPLWDWLRQ��DQ\�JHQHUDO�SDUWQHU��PDQDJLQJ�PHPEHU��RIILFHU�RU�GLUHFWRU�
RI�WKH�,QYHVWRU��RU�DQ\�YHQWXUH�FDSLWDO�IXQG�QRZ�RU�KHUHDIWHU�H[LVWLQJ�ZKLFK�LV�FRQWUROOHG�E\�RQH�RU�PRUH�
JHQHUDO�SDUWQHUV�RU�PDQDJLQJ�PHPEHUV�RI��RU�VKDUHV�WKH�VDPH�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPSDQ\�ZLWK��WKH�,QYHVWRU��DQG�
provided, further�� WKDW� WKH� &RPSDQ\�PD\� DVVLJQ� WKLV� LQVWUXPHQW� LQ� ZKROH�� ZLWKRXW� WKH� FRQVHQW� RI� WKH�
,QYHVWRU��LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�D�UHLQFRUSRUDWLRQ�WR�FKDQJH�WKH�&RPSDQ\¶V�GRPLFLOH����

�
�I�� ,Q�WKH�HYHQW�DQ\�RQH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�WHUPV�RU�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�LV�IRU�DQ\�UHDVRQ�

KHOG�WR�EH�LQYDOLG��LOOHJDO�RU�XQHQIRUFHDEOH��LQ�ZKROH�RU�LQ�SDUW�RU�LQ�DQ\�UHVSHFW��RU�LQ�WKH�HYHQW�WKDW�DQ\�RQH�
RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�WHUPV�RU�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�RSHUDWH�RU�ZRXOG�SURVSHFWLYHO\�RSHUDWH�WR�LQYDOLGDWH�
WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW��WKHQ�VXFK�WHUP�V��RU�SURYLVLRQ�V��RQO\�ZLOO�EH�GHHPHG�QXOO�DQG�YRLG�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�DIIHFW�DQ\�
RWKHU�WHUP�RU�SURYLVLRQ�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�DQG�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�WHUPV�DQG�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�ZLOO�
UHPDLQ�RSHUDWLYH�DQG�LQ�IXOO�IRUFH�DQG�HIIHFW�DQG�ZLOO�QRW�EH�DIIHFWHG��SUHMXGLFHG��RU�GLVWXUEHG�WKHUHE\���
�

�J�� $OO�VHFXULWLHV�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKLV�LQVWUXPHQW�PD\�EH�LVVXHG�LQ�ZKROH�RU�IUDFWLRQDO�SDUWV��
�

� � �K�� $OO�ULJKWV�DQG�REOLJDWLRQV�KHUHXQGHU�ZLOO�EH�JRYHUQHG�E\�WKH�ODZV�RI�WKH�6WDWH�RI�1HZ�<RUN��
ZLWKRXW�UHJDUG�WR�WKH�FRQIOLFWV�RI�ODZ�SURYLVLRQV�RI�VXFK�MXULVGLFWLRQ��
�
� � �L�� $Q\�GLVSXWH�� FRQWURYHUV\�RU� FODLP� DULVLQJ�RXW�RI�� UHODWLQJ� WR� RU� LQ� FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK� WKLV�
LQVWUXPHQW��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�EUHDFK�RU�YDOLGLW\�WKHUHRI��VKDOO�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�ILQDO�DQG�ELQGLQJ�DUELWUDWLRQ�
DGPLQLVWHUHG� E\� WKH� $PHULFDQ�$UELWUDWLRQ�$VVRFLDWLRQ� �WKH� ³$$$´�� XQGHU� LWV� &RPPHUFLDO� $UELWUDWLRQ�
5XOHV�DQG�0HGLDWLRQ�3URFHGXUHV��³&RPPHUFLDO�5XOHV´����7KH�DZDUG�UHQGHUHG�E\�WKH�DUELWUDWRU�VKDOO�EH�
ILQDO�� QRQ�DSSHDODEOH� DQG�ELQGLQJ�RQ� WKH� SDUWLHV� DQG�PD\�EH� HQWHUHG� DQG� HQIRUFHG� LQ� DQ\� FRXUW� KDYLQJ�
MXULVGLFWLRQ���7KHUH�VKDOO�EH�RQH�DUELWUDWRU�DJUHHG�WR�E\�WKH�SDUWLHV�ZLWKLQ�WZHQW\������GD\V�RI�UHFHLSW�E\�
UHVSRQGHQW�RI�WKH�UHTXHVW�IRU�DUELWUDWLRQ�RU��LQ�GHIDXOW�WKHUHRI��DSSRLQWHG�E\�WKH�$$$�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�LWV�
&RPPHUFLDO�5XOHV���7KH�SODFH�RI�DUELWUDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�1HZ�<RUN��1HZ�<RUN���([FHSW�DV�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�E\�
ODZ�RU�WR�SURWHFW�D�OHJDO�ULJKW��QHLWKHU�D�SDUW\�QRU�WKH�DUELWUDWRU�PD\�GLVFORVH�WKH�H[LVWHQFH��FRQWHQW�RU�UHVXOWV�
RI�DQ\�DUELWUDWLRQ�ZLWKRXW�WKH�SULRU�ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�RWKHU�SDUWLHV��
�
� � �M�� 7KH�SDUWLHV� DFNQRZOHGJH� DQG� DJUHH� WKDW� IRU�8QLWHG�6WDWHV� IHGHUDO� DQG� VWDWH� LQFRPH� WD[�
SXUSRVHV�WKLV�&URZG�6$)(�LV��DQG�DW�DOO�WLPHV�KDV�EHHQ��LQWHQGHG�WR�EH�FKDUDFWHUL]HG�DV�VWRFN��DQG�PRUH�
SDUWLFXODUO\� DV� FRPPRQ� VWRFN� IRU�SXUSRVHV�RI�6HFWLRQV������ ����� ���������� ����� �����DQG������RI� WKH�
,QWHUQDO�5HYHQXH�&RGH�RI������� DV� DPHQGHG��$FFRUGLQJO\�� WKH�SDUWLHV� DJUHH� WR� WUHDW� WKLV�&URZG�6$)(�
FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�LQWHQW�IRU�DOO�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�LQFRPH�WD[�SXUSRVHV��LQFOXGLQJ��
ZLWKRXW�OLPLWDWLRQ��RQ�WKHLU�UHVSHFWLYH�WD[�UHWXUQV�RU�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQDO�VWDWHPHQWV���
�
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([KLELW�$�±�&)�6KDGRZ�6KDUH�3UR[\�

�
,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\�

5HIHUHQFH�LV�KHUHE\�PDGH�WR�D�FHUWDLQ�&URZGIXQGLQJ�6LPSOH�$JUHHPHQW�IRU�)XWXUH�(TXLW\��WKH�³Crowd 
SAFE´��GDWHG�>'DWH�RI�&URZG�6$)(@�EHWZHHQ�6WRMR�3URGXFWV��,QF���D�'HODZDUH�FRUSRUDWLRQ��WKH�
³Company´��DQG�>,QYHVWRU�1DPH@��³Stockholder”). ,Q�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�D�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�6WRFNKROGHU¶V�
LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�WKH�&URZG�6$)(�LQWR�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�RI�D�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV��DV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�&URZG�
6$)(��SXUVXDQW�WR�WKH�&URZG�6$)(��WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�DQG�2SHQ'HDO�3RUWDO�//&��WKH�³Intermediary´��DV�
DQRWKHU�KROGHU�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�RI�D�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�KHUHE\�DJUHH�DV�IROORZV��
�
��� *UDQW�RI�,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\��

�
D�� :LWK�UHVSHFW�WR�DOO�RI�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�&DSLWDO�6WRFN�RI�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�RZQHG�E\�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�

DV�RI�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKLV�,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\�RU�DQ\�VXEVHTXHQW�GDWH��WKH�³Shares´���6WRFNKROGHU�
KHUHE\�JUDQWV�WR�,QWHUPHGLDU\�DQ�LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�'HODZDUH�*HQHUDO�
&RUSRUDWLRQ�/DZ�WR�YRWH�WKH�6KDUHV�LQ�DQ\�PDQQHU�WKDW�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�PD\�GHWHUPLQH�LQ�LWV�VROH�
DQG�DEVROXWH�GLVFUHWLRQ���)RU�WKH�DYRLGDQFH�RI�GRXEW��WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\��DV�WKH�KROGHU�RI�WKH�
LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\��UDWKHU�WKDQ�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU��ZLOO�YRWH�WKH�6KDUHV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�DOO�
VKDUHKROGHU�PHHWLQJV�DQG�RWKHU�DFWLRQV��LQFOXGLQJ�DFWLRQV�E\�ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�LQ�OLHX�RI�D�PHHWLQJ��
RQ�ZKLFK�KROGHUV�RI�6KDUHV�PD\�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR�YRWH��7KH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�KHUHE\�DJUHHV�WR�YRWH�DOO�
6KDUHV�FRQVLVWHQWO\�ZLWK�WKH�PDMRULW\�RI�WKH�VKDUHV�RQ�ZKLFK�WKH�&)�6KDGRZ�6HULHV�LV�EDVHG��7KLV�
SUR[\�UHYRNHV�DQ\�RWKHU�SUR[\�JUDQWHG�E\�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�DW�DQ\�WLPH�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�6KDUHV��

E�� 7KH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�VKDOO�KDYH�QR�GXW\��OLDELOLW\�RU�REOLJDWLRQ�ZKDWVRHYHU�WR�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�DULVLQJ�
RXW�RI�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\¶V�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKH�WKLV�LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\��7KH�6WRFNKROGHU�H[SUHVVO\�
DFNQRZOHGJHV�DQG�DJUHHV�WKDW��L��WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�ZLOO�QRW�LPSHGH�WKH�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKH�
,QWHUPHGLDU\¶V�ULJKWV�XQGHU�WKLV�LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\�DQG��LL��WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�ZDLYHV�DQG�
UHOLQTXLVKHV�DQ\�FODLP��ULJKW�RU�DFWLRQ�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�PLJKW�KDYH��DV�D�VWRFNKROGHU�RI�WKH�
&RPSDQ\�RU�RWKHUZLVH��DJDLQVW�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�RU�DQ\�RI�LWV�DIILOLDWHV�RU�DJHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ\�
GLUHFWRUV��RIILFHUV��PDQDJHUV��PHPEHUV��DQG�HPSOR\HHV��LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�DQ\�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKH�
LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\�JUDQWHG�KHUHXQGHU��

F�� 7KLV�LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\�VKDOO�H[SLUH�DV�WR�WKRVH�6KDUHV�RQ�WKH�HDUOLHU�RI��L��WKH�GDWH�WKDW�VXFK�
6KDUHV�DUH�FRQYHUWHG�LQWR�&RPPRQ�6WRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RU��LL��WKH�GDWH�WKDW�VXFK�6KDUHV�DUH�
FRQYHUWHG�WR�FDVK�RU�D�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQW��EXW�VKDOO�FRQWLQXH�DV�WR�DQ\�6KDUHV�QRW�VR�FRQYHUWHG��
�

��� /HJHQG��7KH�6WRFNKROGHU�DJUHHV�WR�SHUPLW�DQ�DSSURSULDWH�OHJHQG�RQ�FHUWLILFDWHV�HYLGHQFLQJ�WKH�6KDUHV�
RU�DQ\�WUDQVIHU�ERRNV�RU�UHODWHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�RZQHUVKLS�UHIOHFWLQJ�WKH�JUDQW�RI�WKH�LUUHYRFDEOH�
SUR[\�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�6HFWLRQ����
�

��� 5HSUHVHQWDWLRQV�DQG�:DUUDQWLHV��7KH�6WRFNKROGHU�UHSUHVHQWV�DQG�ZDUUDQWV�WR�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�DV�
IROORZV��

�
D�� 7KH�6WRFNKROGHU�KDV�WKH�DOO�QHFHVVDU\�ULJKWV��SRZHU�DQG�DXWKRULW\�WR�H[HFXWH��GHOLYHU�DQG�SHUIRUP�

KLV�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�WKLV�,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\��7KLV�,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\�KDV�EHHQ�GXO\�H[HFXWHG�DQG�
GHOLYHUHG�E\�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�DQG�FRQVWLWXWHV�VXFK�6WRFNKROGHU¶V�OHJDO�DQG�YDOLG�REOLJDWLRQ�
HQIRUFHDEOH�DJDLQVW�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�LWV�WHUPV��
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�

E�� 7KH�6WRFNKROGHU�LV�WKH�UHFRUG�RZQHU�RI�WKH�6KDUHV�OLVWHG�XQGHU�WKH�QDPH�RQ�WKLV�$SSHQGL[�$�DQG�
WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�KDV�SOHQDU\�YRWLQJ�DQG�GLVSRVLWLYH�SRZHU�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�VXFK�6KDUHV��WKH�
6WRFNKROGHU�RZQV�QR�RWKHU�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�FDSLWDO�VWRFN�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��WKHUH�DUH�QR�SUR[LHV��
YRWLQJ�WUXVWV�RU�RWKHU�DJUHHPHQWV�RU�XQGHUVWDQGLQJV�WR�ZKLFK�VXFK�6WRFNKROGHU�LV�D�SDUW\�RU�ERXQG�
E\�DQG�ZKLFK�H[SUHVVO\�UHTXLUH�WKDW�DQ\�RI�WKH�6KDUHV�EH�YRWHG�LQ�DQ\�VSHFLILF�PDQQHU�RWKHU�WKDQ�
SXUVXDQW�WR�WKLV�LUUHYRFDEOH�SUR[\��DQG�WKH�6WRFNKROGHU�KDV�QRW�HQWHUHG�LQWR�DQ\�DJUHHPHQW�RU�
DUUDQJHPHQW�LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKLV�,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\��
�

��� (TXLWDEOH�5HPHGLHV��7KH�6WRFNKROGHU�DFNQRZOHGJHV�WKDW�LUUHSDUDEOH�GDPDJH�ZRXOG�UHVXOW�LI�WKLV�
,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\�LV�QRW�VSHFLILFDOO\�HQIRUFHG�DQG�WKDW��WKHUHIRUH��WKH�ULJKWV�DQG�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�WKH�
,QWHUPHGLDU\�PD\�EH�HQIRUFHG�E\�D�GHFUHH�RI�VSHFLILF�SHUIRUPDQFH�LVVXHG�E\�DUELWUDWLRQ�SXUVXDQW�WR�
WKH�&URZG�6$)(��DQG�DSSURSULDWH�LQMXQFWLYH�UHOLHI�PD\�EH�DSSOLHG�IRU�DQG�JUDQWHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�
WKHUHZLWK��6XFK�UHPHGLHV�VKDOO��KRZHYHU��QRW�EH�H[FOXVLYH�DQG�VKDOO�EH�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�DQ\�RWKHU�
UHPHGLHV�WKDW�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDU\�PD\�RWKHUZLVH�KDYH�DYDLODEOH��
�

��� 'HILQHG�7HUPV��$OO�WHUPV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKLV�,UUHYRFDEOH�3UR[\�VKDOO�KDYH�WKH�PHDQLQJ�GHILQHG�KHUHLQ��
$OO�RWKHU�WHUPV�ZLOO�EH�LQWHUSUHWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�&URZG�6$)(��

�
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Stojo�Video�Transcript�
�

Hi�I'm�Jurrien,�coͲfounder�&�CEO�of�Stojo.�At�Stojo,�we�think�the�future�depends�on�smart,�
circular�design�and�regenerative�business�practices.�We're�on�a�mission�to�end�disposable�
culture�and�I'm�inviting�you�to�join�us.�
�
When�I�held�my�son�for�the�first�time,�I�knew�I�needed�to�do�something�to�make�this�planet�a�
better�place�for�him�and�for�future�generations.�I�decided�to�build�a�brand�that�reflects�my�
values�and�makes�it�easy�to�live�sustainably.�
�
Stojo�makes�collapsible�reusable�products�that�are�beautiful,�space�saving,�and�fun�to�use.�Our�
products�are�conversation�starters.�They�let�people�know�that�you�stand�for�something.�Our�
customers�are�the�next�generation�of�consumers.�They’re�driving�the�zero�waste�and�plastic�
free�movements.�They’re�so�passionate�about�our�mission�and�they�can’t�stop�talking�about�
Stojo.�
�
I�love�it�because�it’s�compact.�it’s�cute.�
�
Perfect�to�travel.�
�
See..the�heavens�approve.�
�
I�am�so�passionate�about�your�product�I�just�want�to�give�up�acting�and�standͲup�comedy�and�
just�talk�about�hope�these�are�about�to�change�my�life.��
�
Our�first�product�was�the�Stojo�cup.�It’s�enabled�millions�of�people�to�say�no�to�disposables.�
Compact�and�leakͲproof,�you�can�carry�it�with�you�anywhere,�so�it's�always�there�when�you�
need�it.�We�just�recently�introduced�the�Stojo�bottle.�customers�love�its�elegant,�spaceͲsaving�
design,�making�it�the�perfect�alternative�to�singleͲuse�water�bottles.�
�
Stojo�got�its�start�on�Kickstarter�and�now�we're�giving�our�incredible�community�the�
opportunity�to�invest�and�be�a�part�of�our�growth.�The�money�we�raise�will�be�used�to�fund�new�
products.�Over�the�next�year,�Stojo�will�launch�a�kids�line,�food�storage�containers,�and�a�
premium�line�made�from�recycled�ocean�plastic.�Imagine�a�future�where�companies�take�plastic�
out�of�the�oceans�to�make�new�products.�Where�consumer�behavior�actually�cleans�up�our�
environment.�
�
We're�a�talented�team�of�good�people�who�genuinely�care�about�making�the�world�a�better�
place.�Stojo�is�one�of�the�fastest�growing�consumer�brands�and�made�the�Inc�500�list�of�fastest�
growing�companies�in�2020�and�we're�filling�a�need�in�the�$164�billion�reusable�container�
market.�Stojo�is�sold�in�over�40�countries�and�can�be�found�in�a�variety�of�retailers�from�
Starbucks,�to�Urban�Outfitters,�to�Whole�Foods.�
�
So�join�our�movement�to�end�disposable�culture,�one�reusable�at�a�time.�


